TOWN OF NAGS HEAD
NORTH CAROLINA

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, PA.

A Professional Association of Certified Public Acconntants and Management Consultants



Exhibit

10

TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditors’ Report
Management Discussion and Analysis
Basic Financial Statements:
Government-wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Assets

Statement of Activities

Fund Financial Statements:

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

General Fund and Annually Budgeted Capital Reserve Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Fund Net Assets - Proprietary Funds

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets - Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets -
Fiduciary Funds

Notes to the Financial Statements

1-2

3-11

12

13-14

15

16-17

18-19

20

21

22-23

24

25

26-54




Schedule

Page

Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation

Allowance - Required Supplementary Inforrnation -

Schedule of Funding Progress 25
Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation

Allowance - Required Supplementary Information -

Schedule of Employer Contributions 36
Supplemental Financial Data:

General Fund - Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 57-68
Beach Nourishment Project Fund - Schedule of Revenues,

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - 69
Budget and Actual

Beach and Sound Accesses Project Fund - Schedule of

Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balance - Budget and Actual 70
Water Fund - Schedute of Revenues and Expenditures -

Budget and Actual {Non-GAAP} 72-76
Storm Water Fund - Schedule of Revenues and

Expenditures -Budget and Actual {Non-GAAP) 77
Nags Head Leasing - Schedule of Revenues and

Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) 78
Other Supplemental Data:
Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable 79
Analysis of Current Year Levy 80

Compliance Section:

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on

Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of

Financial Statements Performed Tn Accordance with :
Govermnmernt Auditing Stendards BI-B82




Martin Starnes & Associates, CFAs, PA,

A Professional Association of Certifivd Prbflc Acconnianits and Management Consnitants

INDEPENDENT AUDITQRS® REPORT

To the Honorablc Mayor and

Members of the Beoard of Commissioners
Town of Nags Head

WNags Head, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type
activities, vach major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Nags Head,
North Carolina as of and for the year ended June 30, 2007, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These tinancial statements are the responsibility of
the Town of Nags Head, North Carolina’s management, Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on
these basic financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material
misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estinates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the general
fund, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Nags Head, North
Carolina as of Jung 30, 2007, the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
appropriate, thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund and Capital Reserve
Fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

In accordance with Goversiment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 8,
2007 on vur consideration of the Town of Nags Head's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants agreements and
other matters. The purpose of thal report is to describe the scope of out testing of internal control over
financial reparting and compliance and the results of that testing, and net to provide an opinfon on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
prepared io accordance with Government duditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the
results of our audit.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis is not a requircd part of the basic financial statements but is
supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, We have applied
certain Itmited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods
of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit
the information and express oo opinion thereon,

{ur audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of the
Town of Nags Head, North Carolina taken as a whole, The individual fund financial statements and
schedules arc presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a requived part of the basic
financial staternents. The individual fund financial statements and schedules have been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Menties ounssd € omcintia, PR3, P,

Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, PA,
October 8, 2007




Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Management Discussion and Analysis

As management of the Town of Nags Head, we offer readers of our financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town of Nags Head for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2007. The Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section is designed to assist the reader in
focusing on significant financial issues, provide an overview of the Town’s financial activity, identify
changes in the Town’s financial condition, identify material deviations from the financial budget, and
identify individual fund issues or concerns.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The assets of the Town of Nags Head exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $33,701,582
{net assets).

The Town's net assets increased by $1,912,243 over the prior year. The governmental net assets
increased by $935,545 (+4.45%). The business-type net assets increased by $976,878 (+6.28%).

At the end of the current flscal year, the total unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was
$6,859,833 which was down slightly by $210,082 (-2.97%) from the prior year. The decrease is due
primarily to increases in both Fund Balance Reserved for Encumbrances and Fund Balance Reserved for
Restricted assets related to capital purchases funded and encumbered in fiscal year 06/07 that were not
completed as of June 30, 2007. This unreserved fund balance represents 64.15% of total general fund
expenditures for the fiscal year up from 53.43% in the prior year. The increase Is due to a significant
decraase in expenditures.

The Town of Nags Head’s total debt decreased by $391,389 (-5.71%) during the current fiscal year.

The General Fund budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 was adopted with a tax rate of $.1475
per $100 assessed valuation reflecting no change from the prior year. Total assessed valuation increased
from $2,970,977,582 as of June 30, 2006 to $3,031,041,982 as of June 30, 2007 an increase of
$60,064,400 (+2.02).

General Fund budget amendments duting fiscal year 2006-2007 increased the adopted budget by just
under $772,000 with individual increases {decreases) by functional area noted below:

* General Government decreased by $268,261 for reimbursements from the Water Fund for
administrative oversight through the allocation of indirect costs.

= Public Safety increased by $728,429 to fund capital purchases budgeted at the first year debt
payment amount including replacement police vehicles and a replacemant fire truck.

» Environmental Protection increased by $261,833 due to capital purchases budgeted at the first year
debt payment amount.

» Public Works increased by $54,538 from grant funding of the west side muiti-use path improvements
partially offset by reimbursements from the Water Fund for administrative aversight through the
allocation of indirect costs.

= Contingency decreased by $4,603 to provide funding in Public Works for costs associated with land

acquisition.
Key Ratios
% Debt to General Governmentai Expenses_ 54.30%
% Property Tax Collaction 99.95%




% Increase in Assessed Property Valuation 2.02%

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an Introduction to the Town of Nags Head’s basic
financial statements. The financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views
of the Town: 1) Government-Wide Financial Statements and 2) Fund Financial Statements. Both
perspectives, however, are essential and complementary components that allow the user to address
relevant questions, broaden a basis for comparison, and enhance the Town's accountability. Ancther
element of the basic financial statements is the notes to the financial statements. In addition to the basic
financial statements, this report contains other supplemental information that will enhance the reader’s
understanding of the financial condition of the Town of Nags Head. (See Figure 1)

Figure 1 — Required Components of Annual Financlal Report

| |

Management’s Basic
Discussion and Financial
Analysis Statements
Govarnment-wide Fund Notes to the
Financial Statements Financial Statements Financial Staterments

A. Government-Wide Finagncial Statements

The government-wide statement report both short-term and long-term information about the financial
condition of the Town as a whole, focusing on the government’s operational accountability, The
accounting methods of these statements reflect that of private sector companies in that all governmental
and business-type activities are consolidated into columns that add to a total for the primary government.
The statement of net assets reports the Town's net assets and includes all, both current and non-current,
assets and liabilities of the government. The difference between the two is reported as net assets. Qver
time, increases or decreases in the Town’s net assets are one indication of whether its financial health is
improving or deteriorating. You will also need to consider other non-financial factors, such as changes in
the Town's property tax base, local economy and service levels, to assess the overall health of the Town.
On the other hand, the statement of activities reports how net assets have changed and includes all of the
current year's revenues and expenses regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The government-wide financial statements of the Town are divided into twa categories:
Governmental Activities — Most of the Town’s basic services are included here, such as police, fire,
environmental services, public works and general administration. Taxes and grants finance most of
these activities.

Business-Type Activities — the Town charges fees to customers to cover the costs of certain
services it provides. The Town's water system is included. Also included here is the Town's one




blanded component unit — Nags Head Leasing. Although legally separate, “component units” are
important because of certain financial transactions that exist between the entities and the Town.

B. Fund Fingncial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detgiled information about the Town’s major funds while
focusing on the fiscai accountability. Funds are accounting devices that the Town uses to keep track of
specific sources of funding, such as those required by state law, and spending for particular purpases. The
Board of Commissioners establishes several funds to assure control as well as good management and to
exhibit proper usage of certain taxes and grants. The Town of Nags Head, like all other governmental
entities in North Carolfina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with
finance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes,

The Town has three types of funds:

Governmental Funds — Most of the Town's basic services are included in governmental funds, which
focus on 1) how cash and other financial assets can readily be converted to cash flow in and out
(that is, their liquidity) and 2} the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. This is
the manper in which the financial budget is typicailly developed. Because this information provides
a short-term view that helps determine whether there are more or fewer financlal resources that
can be spent in the near future to finance the Town’s programs, as opposed to the government-
wide statements which provides both a short and a tong term focus, a reconciliation is provided on
the page following the fund statements that explains the relationship or differances between the
two views.

Proprietary Funds — Services for which the Town charges customers a fee are generally reported in
proprietary funds. Accounted for like the government-wide statements, proprietary funds provide
both long and short-term financial information and in addition include the statement of cash flows.
A reconciliation statement is once mare provided following these funds to explain the difference
between them.

Fiduciary Fungls — The Town is the trustee, or fiduclary, for its Police Special Separation Allowance
Pension Trust. The Town is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in this fund are used
only for their intended purposes. The Town's fiduciary activities are reported in a separate
statement of fiduciary net assets and a statement of changes [n fiduciary net assets. We exclude
these activities from the government-wide financial statements because the town cannot use these
assets to finance its operations.

C. Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements.

D. Required Supplemeéntary Informaticn

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information concerning the Town of Nags Head’s progress In funding its obligation
to provide pension benefits to certain of its employees,

E. her n Information

Other supplementary information includes combining statements for selected funds showing additional
detail for revenues and expenditures.




GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case of
the Town of Nags Head, assets exceeded liabllities by $33,075,488 at the close of the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2007. A large portion of the Town of Nags Head's net assets $19,068,565 represents its
investment in capital assets (e.g. land, building, machinery and equipment), less any related debt used to
acquire those assets that is still outstanding plus any loan proceeds not yet expended at the end of the
fiscal year. The resources to repay the debt must be provided from sources other than capital assets,
since it cannot be used to liquidate the fiabilities.

An additional portion of the Town of Nags Head's net assets $377,795 represents resources that are
subject to restrictions on how they may be used. The remainder of $13,029,128 in unrestricted net assets
is the residual amount of assets that can be used without constraints established by debt covenants,

enabling legislation, or other legal requirements. However, it should be noted that only a portion of this -

amount is available and unobligated to finance additional day-to-day governmental activities or unforeseen
- ¢ircumstances in the future.

Town of Nags Head's Net Assets
Governmental Activities Business - Type Activities _ Totaf
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Current and Other Assets $ 13,213,240 $1282G,681 ¢ 5003978 § 6473053 $ 18217218 $ 19,293,734
Capital Assets, Net 14594873 14421240 8,760,433 6,248,972 23355306 20,670,212

Total Assets - 27,808,113 27241921 13764411 12722025 41572524 35963946
Long-Term Debt Qutstanding 5,373,029 5,705,330 1,091,183 1,150,271 6,464,212 6,855,601
Other Liabilties 452,14 529,156 314,626 790,030 1,406,730 1,319,186

Total Liabities 5,865,133 6,234,486 2,005,809 1,940,301 7,870,942 8,174,787

Net Assets $21,942,580 $21,007435 $11,758,602 410781724 ¢33,701582 4% 31,789,159
Investment in Capital Assets,

Net of Related Debt 11,980,318 11,273,798 7,705,341 5130,179 19,694,659 16,403,977
Restricted 977,795 133,310 - - 977,755 133,310
Unrestricted 8,975,867 5,600,327 4,053,261 5,651,545 13,029,128 15,251,872
Total Net Assets $21,942980 $21,007435 ¢$1L,758602 $10,781,724 433,701,582 431,789,159

See Exhihit 1




Revenues:

Program Revenues:
Charges for Services
Operating Grants
Capital Grants

General Revenues:
Property Taxes
Other Taxes
Investment Income
Other

Taotal Revenles

Expenses:

General Government

Public Safety

Public Works/Transporiation
Environmentzal Protaction
Interest on Long Term Debt
Water Utility

Total Expenses

Met Increase in Met Assets
Before Transfers
Transfers

Met Assets - July 1
Met Assets - June 30

Town of Nags Head's Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Activities Business - Type Activities Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

$ 639682 § 605719 § 2,741,918 $ 2,863,177 $ 3,381,600 % 3,268,589
39000 1,000,671 29,960 - 68,990 1,000,671
218,213 354,585 - - 218,213 354,585
4,482,309 4,452,450 - . 4,482,309 4,452,450
4,092,110 4,431,297 - - 4,092,110 4,431,297
599,034 371,338 236,896 183,864 835,930 555,202
802,237 616,951 Bg2,217 334,324 1,684,454 951,275
$10,872,675 $11,833,011 ¢ 3,890,931 $ 3,181,365 $14,763606 $ 15,014,376
2,216,074 2,268,425 - 2,216,074 2,268,425
4,310,009 4,185,344 - 4,310,009 4,185,344
1,621,662 1,472,469 - 1,621,662 1,472,459
1,529,948 1,725,256 . 1,529,948 1,725,256
217,671 220,646 - - 217,671 220,646
- - 2,965,815 2,530,550 2,955,819 2,930,550
9,895,364 9,872,140 2,955,815 2,930,550 12,851,183 12,802,730
977311 © 1,960,871 935,112 250,775 1,912,423 2,211,646

{41,765) (100,000) 41,766 100,000 -
21,007,435 19,146,564 10,781,724 10,430,948 31,789,159 29,577,513
$ 21,942,980 $21007435 $11.758602 ¢$10781,724 §33,701,582 3 31,789,158

A. Governmental Activities

Governmental activities increased the Town of Nags Head’s net assets by $935,545. The governmental
activities revenue decreased by $960,336, which included a decrease in FEMA reimbursement revenue
from $980,648 in the prior year to zero in the current fiscai year. Ad valorem tax revenue was up by
$25,859 with other taxes down by $339,187.
continued diversification of invested funds and an improved rate of return. Building permits were down
for the fourth year in a row with a decrease of $26,313.

Investment earnings increased by $227,696 due to

Without the FEMA revenue in the prior year, total governmental revenuss increased by $20,312

(+.19%).

During the year, the Town's governmental expenses were $9,895,364 an increase of $23,224 (+.24%).
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B. Business Type Activities

Business type activities increased the Town of Nags Head's net assets by $976,878. There are three
separate and distinct operations accounted for in the Enterprise Funds: the Water Utility Operations,
the Storm Water Fund, and Nags Head Leasing. Charges for service in the Water Fund increased in
both the Water Operations Fund and the Storm Water Fund by $77,817 and $924, respectively, as
compared to the preceding year.

Revenues by Source for Business Type Activitles

Operating Grants,
$29,900

Cther Revenue
Sources, $882,217

Charges for Services,
$2,741,918

Investmeant Earnings,
£236,896

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN'S FLUNDS
A, Governmental Funds

As noted earlier, the Town of Nags Head uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements. The focus of the Town of Nags Head’s governmental funds is




to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the Town of Nags Head’s financing requirements. Specifically,
unreserved fund balance can be a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for
spending at the end of the fiscal yaar.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Town of Nags Head. At the end of the current
fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $6,859,833, while total fund balance
reached $9,945,933. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare
unreserved fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 64.15% of
total General Fund expenditures compared with 53.44 % for the prior year. Note that unreserved fund
balance is down from the prior year unreserved fund balance of $7,069,915 by $210,082 {-2.697%)
while total fund balance is up by $1,119,381 (+12.68%), The decrease in unreserved fund balance
relative to the prior year is a resuit of reserved fund balances for encumbrances and restricted assets
for prior year capital items that were not complete as of the end of the fiscal year and were still
encumbered, in addition to, undistributed loan proceeds held in escrow to be used for the purchase
costs when complete.

As of June 30, 2007, the governmental funds of the Town of Nags Head reported combined fund
balance of $10,976,421, a 7.41 % increase over last year. Included in this change in fund balance are
increases in fund balance in the General fund partially offset by decreases in fund balance in the
Capital Reserve Fund, Beach Nourishment Project Fund, and newly created Beach & Sound Access
Project Fund.

B. Proprietary Funds

The Town of Nags Head’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide statement but in more detail. Unrestricted net assets of the Water Fund at the end
of the fiscal year amounted to $3,812,587. This represents a decrease of $1,667,501 from the prior
year primarily as a result of the acquisition of real property. This decrease is partially offset by an
increase in unrestricted net assets for the Storm Water Fund of $69,198.

C. Capital Assets

The Town of Nags Head's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities
as of June 30, 2007, totals $23,355,306 (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include
buildings, construction in progress, other improvements, land, intangibles, machinery and equipment
and vehicles.

Major capital asset transactions during the year inciude the following additions (there were no
significant demolitions or disposals):

» Acquisition of land by the Water Fund with the Dare County Tourism Board for future
development at a cost to the Town of $1,617,953. The Town acquired a 34.783% interest
in the property with the remaining 65.217% acquired by the Dare County Tourism Board.
The seller also donated a portion of the property valued at $1,800,000 ($626,094 for the
Town’s share) for a total acquisition value of $6,400,000 plus related legal and closing costs,




Town of Mags Head's Capital Assets
{net of depreciation)
Governmental Aclivities Business - Type Activities Total
2007 2006 2007 2008 2007 D05

Langd § 5025411 § 5020808 % 2448252 § 2042058 § 7473683 § 52250132
Conshruction in Progress 539,369 509,743 134,850 - §76,019 509 749
Buildings 5339638 5,171,568 3,072,405 2,086,688 8,412,047 5,058,256
Other Improvements 976,297 621,181 - - 976,297 821,181
Equipment 615,694 671,673 644,858 575,372 1,260,552 1,247,045 |
Vehicles 2,098 464 2,426 261 59,101 78,758 2,157,565 2,303,020
Intangibles - - 2,359,163 2,505,848 2,388,163 2,505,948

Total 3 14504873 $14421240 § 8760433 § 6245072 § 23355308 § 20670212 -

See Exhibit 1

D. Long Term Debt

As of June 30, 2007, the Town of Nags Head had no bonded debt, The Town’s total debt decreased by
$391,389 for the year.

Town of Nags Head's Qustanding Debt

Governmental Aclivities Busiress - Type Activities Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Finance Coniracts 53604684 $ 4214715 § 888738 § 050,688 $4493422 § 5165403
Capital Leases 1,376,813 1,134,231 166,354 168,105 1,543,167 1,302,336
Compensatad Absences 391,532 386,384 36,001 31,478 427 623 AR7.862

$5373,020 § 5705330 $1,001183 § 1150271 $6464,212 § 6855601

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The level of unemployment in Dare County ranged fram 2.6% to 10.2% compared to the seasonally
adiustad statewide average of 4.8%.

Construction in fiscal year 2006 decreased overall in the Town of Nags Head by $13,820,442 {-32.41%) |
from the previous year. This was due to a slight incraase in commercial construction of $733,000 and

a decrease in residential and other construction of $14,553,442. Both building permit fees and review !
fees were also down In fiscal year 2006-2007, the fourth straight decrease in annual revenues for \
bullding permit fees.

The property tax base increased by 2.02% to $3,031,041,982 in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. |
Occupancy tax exhibited continued strong growth for the Town in fiscal year 2006-2007 and was up in
each of the tweive months relative to the same month in the prior year. Results from sales taxes were
mixed with increases in revenues from Article 40 and 42 taxes and decreased revenues from Article 39 ‘
and 44 taxes. Land transfer tax revenues decreased even further from the significant reduction In
revenues experienced during the prior year with the continuing softening of the real estate market. |
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The Town's adopted budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2007 reflects no change in the property
tax rate of .1475 per $100 in assessed valuation compared to the previous year.

Considering the above indicators when adc;ptirtg the operating budget for the next fiscal year, the
Town's adopted 2007-2008 budget decreased by $763,257 (-5.88%) over the 2006-2007 amended
budget and increased only $8,679 (+.07%) over the adopted budget for 2006-2007.

BUDGET NIGHLIGHRTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING June 30, 2008

Governmental Activities: The adopted budget for fiscal year 2007-2008 is based on the estimated
increased property wvaluation of $3,025,919,536 up 2.01% from the prior year valuation of
$2,966,256,884 allowing the tax rate to remain steady at $.1475/$100. The adopted budget reflects a
slight increase of $8,679 from the prior year's adopted budget. Decreases in projected funding include
a reduction of $210,000 in land transfer tax revenues, a reduction of $111,000 in combined saies tax
revenues, a reduction in building permit fees of $60,000, reduced rents from the YMCA pass-through of
$83,500, and a reduction in transfers from the Capital Reserve Fund of $18,000. These are partially
offset by increases in projected revenues from investment interest of $67,500, revenues from
occupancy tax of $240,000, and grant revenue for the west side multi-use path project of $132,000.

. Budgeted expenditures in the General Fund are generally flat with the exception of funding for Public
Works Facilities Maintenance which is up by $114,000 due to the inclusion of the west-side mult-use
path project costs of $151,000. Excluding that project, departmental costs for Public Works Facilities
Maintenance are down by $37,000, Funds budgeted for Administration are also down by $84,000 due
to allocating the Manager’s salary and benefits between Administration and Police and the contract
casts for a part-time Deputy Manager position versus Full time funding in the previous fiscal year. The
pass-through debt payments for the YMCA debt are also down by $83,500. Departments wit projected
increases include Information Technology that added a full time position in place of a part-time
position, Public Works Sanitation which increased by $78,000 over the prior year due to increased
funding for fuel increases of $20,000 and increasad debt service costs of $54,000 to finance prior year
capital purchases, and increased funding for Contingency from $75,000 to $125,000.

Business —Type Activities: The water rates in the Town will remain the same with projected growth in
gallons purchased of 2.9%. Appropriated retained earnings will be used to fund the debt service on
the new water tank, water line improvement projects, the Town’s share of Fresh Pond capitai pro]ects
and to match any grant funds received for sand bottom septic tank replacement.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town of Nags Head's finances and to
demonstrate the Town's accountability for the moneay it receives. Questions concerning any infarmation
provided in this report or requests for additional infarmation should be addressed to Finance Officer, Town
of Nags Head, Administrative Services, P.Q. Box 99, Nags Head, NC, 27959 or by calling 252-441-5508.
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina Exhibit 2

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2007

Primary Government
Governmental Business-typa
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS '
Current assets:
Cash and cash eqgulvalents % 6,709,763 : 4,372,229 ¢ 11,081,992
Investments 2,761,793 - 2,761,793
Taxes receivable [net) 10,899 - 10,8959
Accounts receivable (net) 148,553 416,009 564,562
Accrued interest receivable 76,323 - 76,323
Due from other governments 878,373 166,121 1,044,494
[nventorfes 73,175 49,619 122,794
Special assessments 577 - 577
Prepaid ltems 10,B72 - 10,872
Totai current assets 10,670,328 5,003,978 15,674,306
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents B23,912 - 823,912
Non-current assets;
Capital Lease Receivable 1,719,000 - 1,715,000
Capital Assets (Note 4):
Land, non-depreciable
improvements and
construction In progress 5,564,780 2,584,902 8,149,682
Qther capitai assets, net of '
depreciation 9,030,093 6,175,531 15,205,524
Total capital assats 14 504 873  B.760,433 23,355,206
Total Assets % 27,608,113 $ 13754 411 ¢ 41,572,524
LYABILITIES
Current llabillties:
Accounts payable % 225,085 5 249,872 % 474,957
Accrued liabilities 169,269 25,918 185,187
Unearned revenue 40,384 257,765 298,149
Bonds and deposits 56,566 381,071 437 637
Pue to other governments 800 - 800
Long-term liabilithes:
Due within one year 1,366,617 158,715 1,525,332
Due in more than one year 4,006,412 932,468 4 938,880
Total liabilitles 5,865,133 2,005,809 7,870,942
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, nef of
related debt 11,969,318 7,705,341 19,604,659
Restricted For:
Powell bili expenditures 145,478 - 145,478
Public safety enfarcement 9,540 - 9,540
Capltal {unexpended debt) 822,777 - 822,777
Linrestriched 8,975,867 4,053,261 13,029,128
Total net assets $ 21942980 $ 11,758,602 $ 33,701,582

The notés to the financial statemeénts are an integral part of this statament.
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Program Revenues

. Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities
General Government $ 2,216,074 $ 575,591 % 19,752 $ -
Public Safety 4,310,009 64,091 18,839 -
Public Works/Transportation 1,621,662 - 499 218,213
Environmental Protection 1,529,948 - - -
Interest on long-term debt 217,671 - - -
Total governmental activities
{See Note 1) 9,895,364 639,682 39,050 218,213
Business-type activities:
Water 2,848,477 2,630,198 - 210,000
Storm Water 107,342 111,720 29,900 -
Nags Head lLeasing - - - Z
Total business-type activities 2,955,819 2,741,918 29,900 210,000
Total primatry government $ 12,851,183 ¢ 3,381,600 $ 68,950 $ 428213
General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purpose
Qccupancy tax
Land transfer taxes
Sales taxes
Other taxes

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
Unrestricted investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Capital Contributions
Transfers

Total general revenues, speciat items and transfers
Total change in net assets

Net assets - beginning

Net assets -~ ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and changes in Net Assels

Primary Government

Governmental
Activities

¢ (1,620,731)
(4,227,079)
(1,402,950)
(1,529,948)

(217,671)

(8,998,379)

(8,5998,379)

4,482,309
1,770,246
652,435
1,628,612
40,817
358,843
599,034
233,043
210,351

(41,766)

9,933,924

935,545

2

1,007,435

§ 21,942,980

Business-type
Activities Total
3 - $ (1,620,731)
- (4,227,079)
- (1,402,950)
- (1,529,948)
- (217,671)
- (8,998,379)
(8,279) (8,279)
34,278 34,278
25,959 25,999
25,995 (8,972,3800
- 4,482,309
- 1,770,246
- 652,435
- 1,628,612
- 40,817
- 358,843
236,896 835,930
5813 238,856
666,404 B76,735
41,766 -
950,879 10,884,803
676,878 1,912,423

10,781,724

$ 11,758,602

31,789,159

$ 33,701,582

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statemsent.
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Taxes recefvable (nat)
Accounts recelvabie (net)
Accrued interest recelvable
Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Inventorles
Speclal assessments
Prepald Items
Capltal legse recelvable
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash aquivalents

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liahillties:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Bonds and deposits

Cue to cther funds

Due to other govemments

DCeferred revenue

Unearned revenue

Total llabillties

Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances
Inventorles
Stata statute
Streets - Powell Blll
Prepalds
Drug enforcement
Restricted assels
Unreserved
- Designated for fsture capital
Designated for next year budget

Total fund balances
Total liabilitles and fund balances

Amounts reporis for governmental activities in the statement
of net assets {Exhibit 1} are different because:
Capital assets used In governmental activities are not
flnancial resources and therefore are not reported In

the funds.

Liabittties for earned but deferred revenues in the

fund statements,
Deferred capital lease recelvable
Deferred taxes recelvable

Soime |labilities, including bonds payable and accrued interast,

are not due and payable in the cutrent perfod and therefore

ara not reported In the funds,
Net assets of governmeantal actvities

Town of Nags Head, North Carolina Exchibit 3 |
Balance Sheat |
Governmaental Funds
Juna 30, 2007 |
Major Funds |
Capital Beach/Sound Beach
General Resarve Arcesses Mourishment Total :
$ 5,754,942 $ 656,350 3 - $ 208471 $ 6,700,763 |
2,761,793 - - - 2,761,793
10,899 - - - 10,899 |
78,923 - 69,630 . 148,553 |
76,323 - - - 76,323 -
878,373 - - - 878,373
73,776 136,548 - - 230,324
73,175 - - - 73,175 -
577 - - - h77
10,872 - - - 10,872
1,719,000 - - - 1,719,000 |
823,912 - - - 823,912
3 12,252,565 t 812808 £ 69,630 § 296,471 $ 13,443,5645
|
5 148,350 $ - $ 68,080 $ 8,685 $ 225085
159,269 - - - 169,269 |
56,566 - - - 56,566
136,548 - FENE] - 230,324
800 - - - 800 !
1,744,715 - - - 1,744,715 |
40,384 - - - 40,384
2,315,632 - 141,826 #,585 2,467,143 |
' |
925,057 - - 1,186,035 2,116,002 |
73,175 - - - 73,175 |
1,093,156 156,548 - - 1,249,704 '
145,478 - - - 145,478
10,872 - - - 10,872
9,540 - - - 9,540
823,912 - - - 823,912
5,249,288 : - {72,198) {865,249} 5,280,843
497,671 - - 497,671 |
510,545 158,679 - - 769,224 |
5,045,933 812,858 {72,195 289,786 10,976,421
$ 12,262,565 $ 812,898 & 69,630 $ 268,471 $ 13,443,564 i
I
14,594,873
1,719,000 !
25,715
{5,373,029)
$ 21,542,980

The neles Lo the financial statements are an Integral part of this statemenl.
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REVENLUES
Ad valorem Laxes
Other taxes and licenses
Unrestricted Intergovernmental
Restricted intergovernmental
Permits and fees
Sales and sarvices
Investment earmings
Miscellanecus

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Cuirrank:
General Government
Pubfic Safety
Environmental Protection
Public Works
Debt service:
Princlpal
Interest and other charges
Capital cut/ay
Total expenditures |
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Installment purchase
obligations issued

Tetal other financing sources {uses)
ttet change in fund balance

Fund balances - beginning

Exhibit &

Fagelof2
Town of Nags Head, North Carollna
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007
Major Funds
General Capltal BeachfSound Baach
Fund Reserve Acresses Nourishrnent Total
% 4,482,387 5 - % - % - $ 4,482,397
4,179,003 - - - 4,129,003
321,950 - - - 221,950
232,799 - 69,630 - 302,425
531,441 - - - 531,441
6,331 - - - 6,331
556,768 25,793 - 16,473 595,034
617,827 - - - 617,827
10,878,506 25,793 69,630 16,473 10,590,402
$ 2,129,079 $ - $ - $ - $ 2,129,079
4,041,289 - - - 4,041,289
1,431,457 - - - 1,431 457
1,287,557 - - - 1,287,557
1,247,975 - - - 1,247,975
217,671 - - - 217,671
337,951 - 150,676 227 818 716,445
10,692,979 - 150,676 227 818 11,071,473
185,527 25,793 (81,046) {211,345) (81,071)
180,042 84,948 8,650 - 273,840
(126,714) {188,892) - - {315,606)
880,526 - - - 860,526
933,854 {103,944) 8,850 - 838,760
1,119,381 {78,151) {72,196) {211,345) 757,689
8,826,552 891,049 - 01,131 10,218,732
§ 9=945!933 § 31258‘}3 i ;?2!19&] § 285,785 $ 10,975,421

Fund balances - ending

The notes ko the finanglal statements are an integral part of this staternant.
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Exhibit 4

Town of Nags Head, North Carolina Page 20f 2

Statement of Revenues, Expendltures and Changes in Fund Balance
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 757,689

Governmental funds report capital outlay as
expenditures, However, in the Statement of
Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reporied as
depreclation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the

current period.
Conftributed Infrastructure $ 210,351
Capital Outlay 716,445
Depreciation {753,163) 173,633

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not
pravide current financial resources are not
reported as revenues/expenditures in the funds.

Change in deferred revenue for tax revenues (78)
Change in deferred capital lease receivable (328,000)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of
the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds, Neither
transaction has any effect on net assets, This is the
amount by which principal repayments exceeded

the proceeds from lease purchase financing.

Debt Issued {$880,526)

Increase in compensated absences (35,148)

Principal Repayments 1,247,975 332,301
Total changes in net assets of governmental activities $ 935,545

The nates to the financial statemants are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Nags Hea
General Fund and Annuatly Bu

d, North Carolina
dgeted Capital Reserve Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Revenues;
Ad valorem taxes
Other taxes and llcenses
Urrestricted intergovernmental
Restricted interqovemmental
Permlts and fees
Speclal assassments
Sales and services
Investment earmings
Miscallanaons

Totzl revenues

Expendlture:

Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Environmental Protection
Public Works

Debt service:
Principal
Interest and other charges

Contingency
Total expenditures

Revenues over {under} axpenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers from other funds
Transfers o other funds
Instaliment purchase

obligations issued
Approprfated Fund Balance

Total other financing sources {uses)
Net change In fund balance
Fund balances, beglnning of year

Prior period adjustrment

Fund balances, end of year

The nates to the financial statementz are an integral part of (his statement.

General Fund

Variance with
Final Budget -
Actual Posltive

Driginal Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 4,363,353 $ 4,363,353 $ 4,482,387 $ 119,032
4,254,500 4,149,500 4,125,003 (20,497}
354,500 354,500 321,950 (32,550)
227,770 385,965 232,799 (153,166}
614,150 614,150 531,441 (82,709)
LTI, 500 459 {1)
9,000 9,000 6,331 (2,669)
405,000 510,000 556,768 46,768
£98,810 737,721 617,328 {120,393)
10,927,583 11,124 689 10,878,506 (246,183)
2,772,633 2,504,372 2,187,826 316,546
4,498,092 5,094,288 4,128,189 966,099
1,547,580 1,751,086 1,493,863 257,223
1,741,409 1,795,947 1,417,455 378,492
1,073,925 1,270,486 1,247,975 22,511
360,511 360,511 217,671 142,840
75,000 70,357 - 70,357
12,075,151 12,847,087 10,692,979 2,154,108
{1,147 568) {1,722,398) 185,527 1,907,925
692,075 210,042 180,042 (30,000)
{134,000 (134,000% {126,714} . 7,286
880,526 BB0,526 -
589,493 765,830 - (755,B30)
1,147,568 1,722 398 933,854 (788,544)
$ - ] - 1,119,381 $ 1,119,381

8,826,552
$ 9,945,933

i3




Capital Reserve Fund

Varlance with
Final Bucdget -
Actual Pesitive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
§ - $ - % - f -
. - 25,793 25,793
- - 25,793 25,793
- - 25,753 25,793
100,000 100,000 84,948 (15,052)
(196,300} {225,267)  (188,892) 40,375
96,300 129,267 - (£29,267)
- - (103,944) (103,944)
$ - % - (78,151) §  (78,151)
H91,049
§ 812‘898

The nates 10 the financial stateéments are an Integral part of this slatement.
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ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable trade (net)
Accounts receivable other (net)
Due from other governments
Invenbories

Total current assets

Capital assels:

Land, nan-depreciable
improvements and
construction in progress

Other capltal assets, net of
deprecization
Total capital assets (net)

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current kabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilitles
Unearmed revenue
Customer deposits

Compensated absences - current

Capital leases payable - current
Total current liabilities

Moncurrent liabltitles:

Compensated absences - non current
Capital leases payabie - non cumrent

Tatal noncurrent liabilitles
Total liabillbes

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt

Unrestricted
Total net assets

Tha nates to the financlal slatements are an integral part of this statement,

Town of Nags Head, North Carclina Exhibit &
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2007
Enterprise Funds
Major Funds Non-Majer
Waker Storm Water Nags Head

Fund Fund Leasing Total
% 4,169,231 $ 202,523 $§ 475 $ 4,372,229
364,344 7,776 - 372,620
13,489 29,900 - 43,389
166,121 : - - 166,121
49,619 - - 49.619
4,763,304 240,199 475 5,003,978
2,584,902 - - 2,584,902
6,088,881 86,650 - 6,175,531
B,673,783 86,650 - 8,760,433
$ 13,437,087 3 326,849 $ 475 $ 13,764,411
245,872 - - 245,872
25,918 - - 25,518
257,765 - - 257,765
381,071 - - 381,071
30,488 - - 30,488
117,153 11,074 - 128,227
1,062,267 11,074 - 1,073,341
5,603 - - 5,603
865,053 61,812 - 926,865
870,656 61,812 - 932,468
1,932,923 72,886 - 2,005,809
7,691,577 13,764 - 7,705,341
3,812,587 240,199 475 4,053,261
% 11504164 $ 253,963 $ 475 $ 11,758,602
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Exhlbit 7
Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Enterprise Funds
Major Fungds Mon-Major
Water Storm Water iiags Head
Fund Fund Leasing Total
OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services $ 2,071,593 £ 111,720 % - $ 2,1B3313

Contribution to Fresh Pond 363,528 - - 363,526

Charges te other gavernmental units 43,522 - - 43922

Rents 105,561 - - 105,951

BEANR Grant - 29,500 - 29,900

Tap and connection fees 15,835 _ - - 15,535

Late payment penalties 18,982 - - 18,982

Water Tag Fees 10,377 - - 10,377

Misceflanecus 5,813 - - 5811
Total operating revenues Z,636,011 141,620 - 2,777,631
OPERATING EXPENSES

Adminlstration 170,019 - - 170,019

Septic Health 245872 - - 245,872

Operatiens 1,278,162 " - 1,278,162

Fresh Pond Operations 272,259 - - 272,260

DlstriButlon 536,214 - - 536,214

Storm Water 107,352 -

Depreclation 2nd amertizabion 303,036 - - 303,036
Total operating expensas 2,805,572 107,342 - 2912914
Total operating Income {169,561} 34,278 - {135,283}
MNONOPERATING REVENUES [EXPENSES)

Investment &amings 229,959 6913 19 236,896

Interest expense {42,905} - - (42,905}
Total nonoperating revenue (expenses]) . 187,054 6,918 19 193,991
Income (loss) before contributions

and transfers 17,493 41,196 19 58,708

Caplta! confributions from Impact fees 210,000 - - 210,000

Capltal contributions from Infrastructure 40,310 - - 40,310

Capltal contributlons from donations 525,054 - - 626,094

Transfer from General Fund - 41 766 - 41,756
Change In net assets §93,897 B2.952 19 975,878
Total net assets - beginning 10,610,267 171,001 456 10,781 724
Total net assets - ending & 11,504,164 % 253,963 ] 475 % 11,758,602 -

The nates to the fArancial statemants ace an integral part of this stalement.
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash recehtved from customers

Cash pald for goods and services

Cash paid e or on behalf of employees for services
Customer deposits returmed

Cther operating revenues

Net cash provided {used) by operaling activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Initial Impact fees recelvad

Transfer from General Fund

Proceeds from financing capital assets

Interest pald on dei fMnancing

Septic Loans ssped

Repayment of sepllt lvans

#rinclpal paid on debt financing

Acquisition of capital assets
Met cash provided {used) by capltal and relater

financing actlvithes

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
[nterest

Met increase (decrease) In cash and cash equivalents

Balances - beginning of the year

Exhibit 8

Pagalnof2
Town of Nags Head, Narth Carolina
Statemant of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal ¥Year Ended June 30, 2007
Business-Type Activitles
Enterprise Funds
Major Funds Non-Major
Water Storm MNags Head
Fund Watker Leasing Total
5 2,394 507 $ 10B.161 3 - & 2,502,658
{1,748,190) {128,171) - {1,876,361)
{728,348) - - {728,348}
(3,390) - -
112,386 - - 112,386
26,965 (20,0103 - B,955
210,000 - - 210,000
- 41,766 - 41,765
- B6,550 - 86,650
(42,905) - - (42,905)
{9,350 - - (5,350)
10,501 - - 10,501
{136,587) (13,769 - {150,351)
—[(1,590,895) (86,650) - [2,027,545)
__ {1,909,236) 28,002 - {1,881.2349)
229,959 6,918 19 236,896
{1,652,312) 14,910 19 (1,637,383
5821 543 187,613 456 5009612
3 4,169,231 $ 2025213 £ 475 § 4372229

Balances - end of the year

The noles lo the financlal slatements ara an integral part of this stalement.
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Exhibit 8

Page 2 of 2
Town of Nags Head, North Caralina
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007
Buslness-Type Activities
Enterprise Fuhds
Major Fungds Non-Major
Water Storm Mags Head
Fund Water Leasing Tetal
Reconcillatlon of operating Income to net cash provided
by nperating actives

Operating Income 169,561 34,278 - (135,283)

Adjustments to reconclle operating Income to net cash
provided by opersting activities:

Cepreclation and amortization 305,036 - - 303,036
Changes In assats and liabltities:

(Increase) decrease in acoounts recelvable {129,730) (33,459 - (163,189)

(Increase) decrease In inventories {6,390) - - (6,390)

{Increase) decrease In prepalds - 120 - -

Increase [decreasea) In accounts payable 8,511 {20,949) - (12,438}

Increase [decrease) in accrued labllitles 24 B76 - - 23,876

Increase {decrease) in customer deposits (3,390) - - (3,390}

Increase {decrease) in deferred revenua 613 - - 613

Total adjustments 196,526 54,288 - 142,238

Wet cash provided by operating activities % 26,965 $ {20,010) $ - $ 60555

Tha nobes to the financka| slatements are an integral part of this slalement.
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2007

Pension
Trust
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ¢ 250,545
Total Assets 250,546
LIABILITIES
Accrued benefits payable 635
Total Liabilities 635
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits $ 249911

The notes to the financtal statéments are an intagral part of this statement.
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Exhlbit 10

Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Pension

Additions Trust
Employer Contributions $ 36,656
Investment Earnings 10,223
Total investment earnings 10,223
Total additions 46,879

Deductions

Beneﬁts 18,265
Total deductions ' 18,265
Change in net assets 28,614
Net assets - beginning of the year ' 221,297
Net assets - end of the year §l 249,911

The nates to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policles

The accounting policies of the Town of Nags Head confarm to generally accepted accounting principles as
applicable to governments, The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies.

A. Reporting Entity

The Town of Nags Head is @ municipal carporation, which is governed by an elected mayor and four
commissioners. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements
present the government and its component units, entities for which the government is considered to be
financially accountable. Blended compenent units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance,
part of the government's operations and so data from these units are combined with data of the primary
government. The blended component unit has a June 30 year end.

Blended Component, Unit — Nags Head Leasing is a not for profit corporation formed and operated for the
purpose of praviding financial assistance to the Town of Nags Head and to enable the Town to acquire
water systemn improvements or other capital items. Nags Head Leasing Corporation is reported as an
Enterprise fund.

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display
information about the primary government. These statements include the financial activities of the overail
government, except for fiduciary activities, Eliminations have been made to minimize the dauble counting
of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-fype activities
of the Town. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues,
and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees
charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the
differant business-type activities of the Town and for each function of the Town’s governmental activities.
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program ar function and, therefore, are
clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds
have been reversad for the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by
the racipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b} grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are
not classified as program revenues, inctuding all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements. The fund financial statements provide information about the Town's funds.
Separate statements for each fund category — governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary - are presented.
The emphasis of fund financial statements Is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed
in 2 separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregatect and reported as
nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those In which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment
earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities,
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. The General Fund accounts
for all financial resources except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund. The primary
revenue sources are ad valorem taxes, grants, and various other taxes and licenses. The primary
expenditures are for public safety, public works/transportation, and environmental protection services.

Capital Reserve Fund. This fund is used to accumnulate funds for capital projects.

Beach Nourishment Capital Project Fund. This fund accounts for the Town’s activities for a beach
nourishment project.

Beach & Sound Access Project Fund. This fund accounts for the Town’s capital construction of new
and improved beach and sound access sites.

The Town repoarts the following major enterprise funds:

Water Fund. This fund is used to account for the Town’s water operations.

Storm Water Fund. This fund is used to account for the Town's storm water management operations.
The Town reports the following nan-major enterprise funds:

Nags Head Leasing. This is a Blended Component Unit.

The Town reports the following fiduciary fund types:

Pension Trust. This is a fiduclary fund for the Law Enforcement Officers Supplemental Retirement.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the Town are maintained during the year
using the madified accrual basis of accounting.

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide, .
proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus. The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are
reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.
Nonexchange transactions, in which the Town gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or
giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, and donations. On an accrual basis,
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from
grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have
been satisfied.

Amounts reported as program revenues inciude 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services,
ar privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions,
including special assessments. Interally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather
than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.
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Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. QOperating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and dellivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
Town'’s enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The Town also recognizes as
operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cast of cannecting new customers to the
system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets, All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonaperating revenues and expenses,

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the medified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues

are recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is

incurred, except for principal and interest an general tong-term debt, claims and judgments, and
compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General
capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-
term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reparted as other financing sources.

The Town considers ali revenues available if they are colfected within 60 days after year-end, except for
property taxes. Ad valcrem taxes receivable are not accrued as revenue because the amount is not
susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable are materially past due and are not considered to be
an available resource to finance the operations of the current year. Also, as of January 1, 1993, State law
altered the procedures for the assessrent and collection of property taxes on registered motor vehicles In
North Carolina. Effective with this change in the law, Dare County is responsible for billing and collecting
the property taxes on registered motor vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts in
the County, including the Town of Nags Head. For motor vehicles registered under the staggered system,
property taxes are due the first day of the fourth month after the vehicles are registered, The billed taxes
are applicable to the fiscal year in which they become due. Therefore, the Town's vehicle taxes for
vehicles registered in Dare County from March 2006 through February 2007 apply to the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2007. Uncollected taxes that were billed during this period are shown as a receivable on these
financial statements. In addition, as of January 1, 2006, State law implemented a staggered expiration
date system for annuaily registered vehicles as part of the corversion into the staggered registration.

Sales taxes coliected and held by the State at year-end on behalf of the Town are recognized as revenue.
Intergovernmental revenues and sales and services are not susceptibie to accrual because generally they
are not measurable until received in cash. Grant revenues which are unearned at year-end are recerded
as unearned revenues. Under the terms of grant agreements, the Town funds certain programs by a
combination of specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical biock grants, and general revenues, Thus,
when program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available to
finance the program. It is the Town's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such
programs, and then by general ravenues,

As permitted by generally accepted accounting principles, the Town has elected to apply only applicable

FASB Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1889 that do not contradict GASB
pronouncements in its accounting and reporting practices for its enterprise funds.
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D. Budgetary Data
1. Budget _

As required by the North Carolina General Statutes, the governing board must adopt by July 1 an annual
balanced budget ordinance for all funds except for those funds that operate under project ordinances. All
annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. The annual budget is prepared on the modified accrual
basis of accounting to be compatible with the accounting system used in recording transactions. Project
ordinances are adopted for the Beach Nourishment Capital Project Fund and Beach & Sound Access Project
Fund, both of which are general governmental fund capital projects.

Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the departmental level for ali annually budgeted
funds and at the object level for the multi-year funds. Budgetary contraol is exercised in all funds, and
appropriations are made at the departmental (functional) level and amended as necessary by the
governing board. The Town Manager is authorized to make interdepartmental transfers in the same fund
up to 10% of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is reduced; however, any
revisions that alter total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the governing beard. During the
year, several amendments to the original budget were necessary including material adjustments related to
hurricane effects.

2. Encumbrances

As required by North Carolina State Statutes, the Town maintains encumbrance accounts that are
considered to be "budgetary accounts”. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end represent the estimated
amounts of the expenditures ultimately to result if unperformed contracts in process at year-end are
completed. Encumbrances cutstanding at year-end do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

At June 30, 2007, $929,967 of apen purchase orders and contracts were outstanding in the General Fund.
These encumbrances outstanding are reported as "Reserved for encumbrances” in the fund balance
section of the balance sheet for the General Fund and will be re-appropriated in the subsequent year's
budget. The Beach Nourishment Capital Project Fund had $1,186,035 in cutstanding encumbrances at
June 30, 2007, The Water Fund had $59,258 in encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2007. There were
no open purchase orders in any of the other Town funds.

E. Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity
L. Deposits and Investments

All deposits of the Town are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as required by
State law [G.S. 159-31]. The Town may designate, as an official depository, any bank ar savings
association whosa principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the Town may establish time deposit
accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW accounts, maney market accounts, and certificates of depaosit,

State law [G.5. 159-30(c)] authorizes the Tawn to invest in obligations of the United States or obligations
fully guaranteed both as to principal and interast by the United States; obligations of the State of North
Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Caralina local government or public authority; obligations of
certain non-guaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers’
acceptances and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT), a SEC-registerad mutual fund.
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The Town's investments with a maturity of more than one year at acquisition and non-money market
investments are reported at fair value as determined by guoted market prices. The securities of the
NCCMT Cash Portfolio, a SEC-registerad (2a-7) money market mutual fund, are valued at fair value, which
is the NCCMT's share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolio’s securities are valued at fair value. Money market
investments that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less are reported at
amortizad cost. Non-participating interest earning investment contracts are reported at cost.

In accordance with State law, the Town has invested in securities which are callable and which provide for
periodic interest rate increases in specific increments until maturity. These investments are reported at
falr value as determined by guoted market prices.

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Town pools money frormn several funds to facilitate disburserment and investment and to maximize
investment income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits and are
considered cash and cash equivalents.

3. Restricted Assets

The unexpended debt proceeds of the General Fund and the Water Fund are classified as restricted assels
because their use is completely restricted to the purpose for which the debt was originally issued.

4, Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

In accordance with State law [G.5. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(g}], the Town levies ad valorem taxes on
property other than mator vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due on
September 1 (lien date); however, interest does not accrue until the following January 6. These taxes are
based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2006.

5. Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for
doubtful accounts. This amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were written
off in prior years.

6. Inventory and Prapaid items

The inventories of the Town are valued at cost (first-in, first-out), which approximates market. The
Town's General Fund inventory consists of expendable supplies that are recorded as expenditures as used
rather than when purchased.

The inventaries of the Town's enterprise fund consist of materials and supplies held for subsequent use.
The cost of these inventories is expensed when used or held for resale rather than when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicabie to future accounting periods and are reccrded as

prepaid items in both government - wide and fund financial statements and expensed as the itemns are
used.
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
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7. Capital Assets

Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than a
certain cost and an estimated useful life in excess of five years, Minimum capitalization cost is $5,000,
Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital
assets are recorded at their estimated falr value at the date of donation. The cost of normal maintanance
and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

In conjunction with implementing GASB 34, “The New Reporting Moda!”, the Town began capitalizing
pubiic domaln (“infrastructura™ capital assets consisting of roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and
sidewalks, drainage systems, water lines, and lighting systems as of July 1, 2003. Infrastructure assets
axceeding the Town’s capitalization threshold will be reported as capital assets in the Statement of Net
Asgets. Infrastructure assets acquired prior to July 1, 2003 were not retroactively reported; therefore, the
infrastructure capital assets in the Statement of Net Assets only include assets purchased after Juiy 1,
2003,

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estirnated
Asset Class Useful Lives
Infrastructure 30
Buildings 40
Improvements 25
Vehicles 5hto 10
Furniture and equipment Sto20

8. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial stataments,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets.

9. Compensated Absences

The vacation poiicy of the Town provides for the accumulation of up to thirty-six days earned vacation
leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the Town's government-wide and proprietary
funds, an expense and a liability for compensated absences and the salary-related payments are recarded
as the leave is earned. The Town has assumed a first-tn, first-out method of using accumulated
compensated time. The portion of that time that is estimated to be used in the next fiscal year has been
designated as a current liability in the government-wide financial statements.

The Town’s sick leave policy provides for an unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave, Sick leave does
not vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in the
determination of length of service for retirement benefit purposes. Since the Town has no obligation for
the accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for sick leave has been made.

In accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act, the Town allows nan-exempt employees to accrue
compensatory time up to the specified limits of 240 hours for non sworn public safety and 480 hours for
sworn public safety employees., The Town uses a first-in, first-out methaod far the use of this
compensatory time.
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10. Net Assets/Fund Balances

Net assets in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as invested in
capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net assets represent constraints
onh resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations
of other governments or imposed by law through state statute,

In the governmental fund financial statements, reservations of fund balance represent amounts that
cannot be appropriated or are legally segregated for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance
represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

State law [G.5. 159-13(b)(16)] restricts appropriation of fund balance for the subsequent year's budget to
an amaunt not to exceed the sum of cash and Investments minus the sum of liabilities, encumbrances, and
deferred revenues arlsing from cash receipts as those amounts stand at the close of the fiscal year
preceding the budget year.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:

Reserved:

Reserved for inventories - portion of fund balance that is not available for appropriation because it
represants the year-end fund balance of ending inventories, which are not expendabie, available
resources.

Reserved for encumbrances - pottion of fund balance available to pay for commitments related to
purchase orders or contracts which remain unperformed at year-end.

Reserved by State statute - portion of fund balance, in addition to reserves for encumbrances and reserves
for inventories, which is not available for appropriation under State law [G.S. 15%-8(a)]. This amount is
usually comprised of accounts recelvable and interfund receivables, which have not been offset by
deferred revenues.

Reserved for streets - Powell Bill - portion of fund balance that is available for appropriation but legaliy
segregated for street construction and maintenance expenditures. This amount represents the balance of
the total unexpended Powell Bill funds.

Reserved for prepaids — portion of fund balance that is not available for appropriation because it
represents the year-end fund balance for prepaid expenses for the subsequent fiscal year which are not
expendable, available resources.

Reserved for restricted assets - portion of fund balance which is not available for appropriation because Jt
represents loan escrow funds not yet reimbursed for the purchase of capital assets financed by debt.

Reserved for drug forfeiture/enforcement — porticn of fund balance that is available for appropriation but
legaily segregated for expenditure as designated by the Director of Public Safety,
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Unreserved:

Designated for subsequent year's expenditures - portion of the total fund balance available for
appropriation that has been designated for the adopted 2007 — 2008 budget ordinance.

Undesignated - porticn of total fund balance available for appropriation that is uncommitted at year-end.

I1. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability
A. Deficit Fund Balances |

The following funds had deficit fund balances in the current year:
Beach & Sound Access Project Fund $72,196

The deficit fund balance was the result of timing differences In the incurrence of costs for the projects and
reimbursement of funds from grantors, The Town expects to correct the Beach & Scund Project Access
Fund deficit upon receipt of grant funds during the following fiscal year.

II1. Detail Notes on All Funds
A. Assets
1. Deposits

All the deposits of the Town are either insured or collateralized by using the Pocling Method, Under the
Pooling Method, which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by
the State Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a
fiduciary capacity for the Town, these deposits are considered to be held by the Town's agents in its
name. The amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non-interest
bearing depesits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits. Depositories using the
Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pocled collateral covering uninsured
deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the Town or the escrow agent.
Because of the inability to measure the exact amounts of collateral pledged for the Town under the
Pooling Method, the potential exists for under-collaterization, and this risk may increase in periods of high
cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial stability
for each depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method. The Town has no policy
regarding custodial risk for deposits, but reiies on the State Treasurer to enforce standards of minimum
capitalization for all pcoling method financial institutions and to monitor them for compliance. The Town
complies with the provisions of G.S. 153-31 when designating official depositories and verifying that
deposits are properly secured.

At June 30, 2007, the Town's deposits had a carrying amount of $7,544,903 and a bank balance of
$£7,987,107. Of the bank balance, $4,099,689 was covered by federal depository insurance and the
remainder was covered by cailateral held under the pooling method. At June 30, 2007, the Town's petty
cash fund totaled $250.
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2. [nvastments

At June 30, 2007, the Town's investments were as follows:

Less than
Investment Type Fair Value 6 Months &6-12 Months - 1-3 Years 3-7 Years
US Governmeant Dbiigations 1,638,824 335,120 376,949 022,755
US Government Agencies 1,122,969 274,903 213,579 387,875 246,612
NC Capital Management Trust -
Cash Portfolio* 4,611,297 4,611,297

Total: 7,373,000 514,023 5,201,825 1,310,630 246,612

* Because the NC Capital Management Trust Term Portfolio had duration of 0.9 years, it was presented as
an investment with a maturity of 6-12 months.

Interest Rate Risk, As a means of iimiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from interest rates, the
Town’s investment palicy limits investments maturing in more than two years from the purchase date to
no more than 20% of the portfolio balance.

Credit Risk,.  The Town has no formal policy regarding credit risk, but bas internal management
procedures that limits the Town's investments to the provisions of G.S. 159-30 and restricts the purchase
of securities to the highest possible ratings whenever particular types of securities are rated. The Town's
investment in U.S. Treasury Obligations are rated TSY and al| other Government Obligations and Agencies
are rated AAA by Standard & Poor's as of June 30, 2007. The Town's investment in NC Capital
Management Trust Cash Partfolio carried a credit rating of AAAmM by Standard & Poor’s as of June 30,
2007,

Concentration: of Credit Risk. The Town's palicy prohibits the investment off all long term securities with a
single institution. There is no limit on the amount the Town may invest in any one issuer. The Town has
more than 5% invested in Federal Home Loan Mortgage securities, Federai Home Loan Bank securities,
and Federal National Mortgage Association securities. These investments are 8.55%, 17.14%, and 8.38%,
respectively, of the Town's total investments, '
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The receivables shown in Exhibit A at June 30, 2007 were as follows:

Govarnmental Activities:
General
Other governmental

Allowance for doubtfui accounts

Total governmentai activities

Business-type Activities:
Water
Stormwater

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Total business type activities

Due from other governments consisted of the following:

Qccupancy tax

Land transfer tax

Sales taxes

Tax reimbursement
Ccean rescue services -
Grants

Other

Total

Capital Lease receivable

Due from
other Interest
Accounts Taxes Governments Receivahle Total

148,553 20,899 878,373 76,323 1,124,148

0

{10,000) {10,000)

148,553 10,899 878,373 76,323 1,114,148

396,402 166,121 562,523

37,676 37,676

(18,069) {18,069)

' . o

416,009 ¢ 166,121 0 582,130
$331,620
180,967
253,812
86,304
19,987
1,000
4,674
£878,373

The Town assisted the Quter Banks Family YMCA in obtaining tax exempt financing for the YMCA property
located within the Town of Nags Head. The Town acquired title to the YMCA property and berrowed funds
fram the Bank of America in the amount of $3,721,000. The Town has entered into an agreement to lease
the property to the YMCA for the total of the amount due under the financing arrangement and has no
financial respensibility beyond lease payments. The total payments received under this lease for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2007 were $415,838 and the payments made were $328,000 in principal and $87,838

in interest.
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4. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the Primary Government for the year ended June 30, 2007, was as follows:

Beginning
Balances

Decreases/
Transfers

Ending

Increases Balances

Governmental activitias:
Capital assets not being depreclated:
Land
Construction in progress

$ 5,020,808 $ 4,603 § - § 5025411

508,748 338,912 (309,291} 539,359

Total capltal assets not being depreciated 5,530, 556 343 515 (309,291} 5. 564,780
Capital assets being depreciated:
Builldings 6,774,157 5,784 305,505 7,085,446
Qther improvements 668,248 386,827 1,055,075
Equipment 1,388,450 118,769 (39,235) 1,459,983
Vehicles and motorized equipment 3,349,179 79,901 (391,517) 5,037,563
Tetkal capital assets being depreclated 14,180,034 583,281 (125 248) 14,638 067
Less accumulatad dapreciation for:
Bufldings 1,602,588 147,006 {3,786} 1,745,808
Dther improvemeants 47,066 31,712 78,778
Equipment 716,777 166,748 (39,236) 844,289
Vehicles and motorized equipment 2,522,919 407,697 {391,517) 2,939,099
Tatal accumulated depreciation 5,289,350 753,163 [434,539) 5,607,974
Total capltal assets being depreclated, net 8,890,684 9,038,093
Governmental activity capital assets, net 14,421 24 14,594,873

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

General Government: L 65,007
Public Safety 254,835
Public Works/Transportation 245,057
Environmental Protection 188,264
Total Deprecaticn expense 753,163
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Capital asset activities for the Business-type activities far the year ended June 30, 2007 was as follows:

Beginning Decreases/ Ending
Balances Increases Trarsfers Balances
Business-type activities:
Enterprise Funds
Capital assebs not being deprediated: :
Land $ 204205 § 224,047 % - $ 2,448,252
Construction in Progress - 135,650 136,650
Total capital assets not being depreciated 204,205 2,380,697 - 2,584,902
Capital assets being depreciated:
Plank 5,924,239 332,130 - 6,256,369
Equipment 990,096 101,670 (9,416) 1,082,350
Vehicles 144 861 144,861
Intangibles 4,203,620 4,203,620
Total capitai assets being depredated 11,262,816 433,800 (9,416) 11,687,200
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Plant 3,037,551 145,409 3,183,960
Equipment 414,725 32,183 (9,416) 437,492
Vehicles 68,102 17,658 85,760
Intangibles 1,697,671 106,786 1,804,457
Total accumulated deprediation 5,218,049 303,036 (9,416) 5,511,669
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 6,044,767 6,175,531
Fund pital assets, net 6,248,972 8,760,433
Business-type activities capital assets, net 6,248,572 8,760,433

The government has active construction projects as of June 30, 2007. At year-end, the government’s
estimated commitments to projects ongoing are as follows:

_ Remaining
Project Spent-to-date Commitmenit
Beach Mourishment % 428,165 % 1,186,035
Baltic Street access 4,146 145,062
June Street acress 44,006 11,094
Indigo Street access 40,406 9,594
West side multi use path 10,153 151,306
Waterline improvements 136,650 32,975
Total 063,526 1,540,066
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B. Liabilities

1. Pension Pian Obligations

a. Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System
Plan Description

The Town of Nags Head contributes to the statewide Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System
(LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of North
Carolina. LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Articte 3
of G.S5. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina
General Assembly. The Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System is included in the
Comprehensive Annual Firancial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carclina. The State’s CAFR includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by
writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mall Service Centar, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410,
or by calling (919) 981-5454,

Fimnding Policy

Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their annual covered salary. The Town is required
to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. For the Town, the current rate for employees not engaged
in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers is 4.88% and 4.78%, respectively, of annual covered
payroll, The contribution requirements of members and of the Town of Nags Head are established and
may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. The Town’s contributions to LGERS for the
years ended June 30, 2007, 2006, and 2005 were $249,502, $240,884, and 208,997, respectively. The
contributions made by the Town equaled the reguired contributions for each year.

b. Law Enforcement Officers Special Separation Allowance
Plan Description

The Town of Nags Head administers a public employee retirement system {the "Separation Allowance™, a
single-employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the Town's qualified
sworn law enforcement officers. The Separation Allowance is equal to .85 percent of the annual
equivalent of the base rate of compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each year of
creditabie service. The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement
allowances that may be autharized by the General Assembly. Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.

All full time law enforcement officers of the Town are covered by the Separation Allowance. At December
31, 2006 the Separation Allowance’s membership consisted of:

Retirees receiving beneflts 2z
Terminated plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 0
Active plan members 21
Total 23

A separate report was not issued for the plan.
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Summary of Sigrifffcant Accounting Policles

Basis of Accounting. Financial statements for the Separation Allowance are prepared using the accrual
basis of accounting. Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when due and when the Town has
made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits are recognized when due and payable
In accordance with the tarms of the plan.

Method Used to Valve Investments, Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term debt, deposits,
repurchase agreements, and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust investments are reported at
cost or amortized cost, which approximates fair value. Certaln longer term United States Government and
United States Agency securities are valued at the last reported sales price.

Contribiitions

The Town is required by Article 12D of G.5. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and has
chosen to Fund.the benefit payments on a pay as you go basis through appropriations made in the General
Fund operating budget. The Town'’s obligation to contribute to this plan is established and may be
amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. There were no contributions made by employees.

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the December 31, 2005
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. The a¢tuarial assumptions
included (a) 7.25% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and (b} projected salary
increases ranging from 4.5% to 12.3% per year. Item (b) included an inflation component of 3.75%. The
assumptions did not include post-employment benefit increases. The actuarial value of assets was
determined using the market value of investments, The unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities are being
amortized as a level dollar amount on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31,
2006 was 24 years.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Oblfigation. The Town’s annual pension cost and net pension
obfigation to the Separaticn Allowance for the current year were as follows:

Annual required contribution % 15,393
Interest on net pensicn obligation (1,001)
Adjustment to annual required contribution 8i3
Annual pension cost 16,205
Contributions made {35,655)
Increase {decrease) In net pension obligation {20,451)
Met pensicn abligation beginning of year {13,806)

Met pension abligation end of year {34,257}

3 Year Trend Information
For Year Ended  Annual Pension Cost Percentage of Net Pension

June 30 (APT) APC Contributed Obligation
2005 $ 18,769 168.6% $ (5653)
2006 20,734 139.3% (13,806)
2007 16,205 226.2% {34,257
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c. Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers
Plan Description

The Town contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (Plan), a defined contribution pension
plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan provides
retirement benefits to faw enforcement officers employed by the Town. Article 5 of G.S. Chapter 135
assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.

Funding Policy

Article 12E of 3.5, Chapter 143 requires the Town to contribute each month an amount equal to five
percent of each officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. Also, the law
enforcement officers may make voluntary contributions to the plan. Contributions for the year ended June
30, 2007 were $67,253, which consisted of $53,277 from the Town and $13,976 from the law enforcement
officars.

d. Suppiemental Retirement Income Plan for Non-Law Enforcement Officers
Plan Descripiton

The Town adopted a Supplemental Retirement Income Plan, a defined contribution plan, for regular
employees beginning January 31, 1591,

Funding Policy

The Town contributes an armount egua!l to three percent of each employee’s salary (excluding law
enforcement officers), and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. Employees may also make
voluntary contributions to the plan. Total contributions for the year ended June 30, 2007 were $20,979,
which consisted of $122,073 from the Town and $86,906 from employees.

e. Firemen’s and Rescue Squad Workers' Pension Fund
Plan Description

The State of North Carclina contributes, on behalf of the Town of Nags Head, to the Firemen's and Rescue
Squad Workers’ Pension Fund (Fund), a cost-shating multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan with a
special funding situation administered by the State of North Carolina, The Fund provides pension benefits
for eligible fire and rescue squad workers that have elected to become members of the fund. Article 86 of
G.S. Chapter 58 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina
General Assembly, The Firemen’s and Rescue Squad Workers’ Pension Fund is included in the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of Morth Carolina. The State's CAFR includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for the Fund. That report may be obtained
by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27659-
1410, or by calling (919} 981-5454,
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Funding Policy

Plan members are required te contribute $10 per month to the Fund, The State, a non-employer
contributor, funds the plan through appropriations. The Town contributes $10 per month on behalf of
each firefighter employed by the Town and each qualified member of the Nags Head Volunteer Fire
Department, The Town’s contributions for the three years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were
$3,823, $3,855, and $3,740, respectively.

f. Other Post-employment Bengfits

According to a Town resoiution, the Town provides post-employment health care benefits to retirees of the
Town, provided they participate in the North Carolina Local Governmental Empioyees’ Retirement System
(System) and have at least ten years of creditable service with the Town. The Town contributes towards
the cost of coverage for these benefits according to the following scale: ten years or more at 25%, fifteen
years or more at 50%, twenty years or more at 75%, and twenty-five years or more at 100%. Also, the
Town's retirees can purchase coverage for their dependents at the Town's group rates. Currently 10
retirees are eligible for post-employment health benefits. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the
Town made payments for post-employment health benefit premiums of $29,643. The Town obtains health
care coverage through private insurers.

g. Other Employment Benefit

The Tawn has aiso elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan far
members of the Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a multiple-
employer, State-administered, cost-sharing plan funded on a one-year term cost basis. The beneficiaries
of those employees who die in active service after one year of contributing membership in the System, or
who die within 180 days after retirement or termination of service and have at least one year of
contributing membership service in the System at the time of death are eligible for death benefits. Lump
sum death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee's 12 highest months salary in a
row during the 24 months prior to the employee's death, but the benefit may not exceed $50,000 or be
less than $25,000. All death benefit payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan. The Town has no
liahility beyond the payment of monthly contributions. Contributions are determined as a percentage of
monthiy payroll, based upon rates established annually by the State. Separate rates are set for employees
not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers. Because the benefit payments are
made by the Death Benefit Plan and not by the Town, the Town does not determine the number of eligible
participants. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, the Town made contributions to the State for death
banefits of $4,747. The Town's required contributions for employees not engaged in law enforcement and
for law enforcement officers represented .08% and .14% of coverad payroll, respectively. The
contributions ta the Death Benafit Plan cannot be separated between the post-employment benefit amount
and the other benefit amount.
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2. Payables
Payables at Exhibit A at June 30, 2007 were as follows:

Salaries and  Accrued Customer

Vendors Benefits Interest  Deposits  Total
Governmental Activities
General 148,350 169,269 56,566 374,185
Beach/Sound Access Fund 68,050 68,050
Beach Nourishment Fund 8,685 8,685
Total Governmental activities 225,085 165,269 56,566 450,920
Business-type Activities :
Water 249,872 25,918 381,079 656,869
Stormwater
Total Business-type activities 249,872 25,918 381,079 655,865

3. Deferred / Unearned Revenues

The balance in deferred / unearned revenues at year-end is composed of the following elements:

Deferrad Unearned

Revenue Revenue

Prepaid taxes and privilege licenses (General Fund) $ 40,384
Taxes and privilege licenses recelvable (General Fund) 24,615 -
Capital LLease for YMCA {General Fund) 1,719,000
Special assessment receivable (General Fund) 577 -
Miscellaneous accounts receivable (General Fund) 523 -
Prepaid rent (Water Fund) - 31,765
Prepaid impact fees (Water Fund) - 226,000

Total 1,744,715 298,149

4. Risk Management

The Town is expased to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Town participates in self-
funded risk-financing pocls administered by the North Carolina League of Municipalities. Through these
pools, the Town obtains general liability and auto liability coverage of $2 million per occurrence, property
coverage up to the total insurance values of the property policy, and workers’ compensation coverage up
to statutory limits, The pools are reinsured through commercial companies for single occurrence claims
against general liability, auto liability and property in excess of $500,000 and $300,000 up to statutory
limits for workers’ compensation. The property liability pool has an aggregate limit for the total property
losses in a single year, with the reinsurance imit based upon a percentage of the total insurance values.
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The Town carries commercial coverage for all ather risks of loss, There have been no significant
reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any
of the past three fiscal years.

The Town carries fload insurance through the National Flood Insurance Plan {NFIP). Because the Town
owns property in an area of the State that has been mapped and designated an “AE, A036, AD4, C, and X"
area (an area with a 1% annual chance of fleoding and a 26% chance of floeding over 30 years) by the
Federai Emergency Management Agency, the Town is eligible to purchase coverage of $500,000 per
structure through the NFIP. The Town is also eligible to and has purchased commercial fiood insurance for
up to $5,000,000 of caverage per structure for properties in C and X designated areas. The Town has also
purchased commercial excess flood insurance in the amount of $1,%56,853 for its Town Hall structure and
$455,000 for its newest fire station.

In accordance with G.5. 159-29, the City's employees that have access to $100 or more at any given time
of the City's funds are performance bonded through a commercial surety bond. The finance officer and
tax collector are each individually bended for $125,000 each. The remaining employees that have access
to funds are honded under a blanket bond for $250,000.

5. Claims and Judgments

At June 30, 2007 the Town was a defendant to various lawsuits. In the opinion of the Town's
management and the Town attorney, the ultimate effect of these legal matters will not have a material
adverse effect on the Town's financial position.

6. Long-Term Debt

a. Capital Leases and Installment Finance Contracts

The Town entered into a fifteen year instaliment financing contract in 1995 with Flrst Union National Bank
of North Carolina for the construction of a 19,348 square foot municipal complex. The amount borrowed
was $2,400,000 at an interest rate of 4.80% and is secured by the property. Payments are due in semi-
annual installments of $113,143 with final payment due December 15, 2010.

The Town entered into a fifteen year installment financing confract in 2002 with Bank of America for the
canstruction of the YMCA building. The amount borrowed was $3,721,000 requiring repayment in
quarterly installments of varying amounts. The interest rate is variable and is calculated as 65% of
Londen Interbank Offering Rate {LIBOR) plus 1.14% per annum and is secured by the property and the
building. The Town has entered into an agreement to lease the property to the YMCA for the total of the
amount due under the financing arrangement ang has no financial responsibility beyond lease payments.
The Lease Agreement with the YMCA calls for payments in the amount of the debt to be made directly to
Bank of America as they become due. Should the YMCA default on the payments, the bank may take
possession of the property. The Town has the right in that case to purchase the property at 25% below
market value and take possession of the property by continuing to make the debt service payments.

The Town entered inta a fifteen year installment financing contract in 2005 with RBC Centura for the
construction of the fire/police facility in south Nags Head. The amount borrowed was %$1,600,000 at an
interest rate of 3.82% and is securad by the property. Criginally payments were due in annual
installments of $106,666.67 plus accrued interest with final payment, due on May 30, 2019, The Town
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prepaid $125,068 during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2006 from unused escrow funds and the
remaining principal was reamortized with payments due in annual instaliments of $9? 046 plus accrued

interest through May 17, 2019.

The Town entered into a fifteen year Instaliment; financing contract in 2005 with RBC Centura for the
construction of an above ground water storage tank and waterline extension located adjacent to the Public
Works facility. The amount borrowed was $1,200,000 at an interest rate of 3.85% and Is secured by the
property. Originally payments were due in annual installments of $102,840.98 including accrued interest
with final payment due on May 30, 2019. The Town prepaid $85,871 during the fiscal year ending June
30, 2006 from unused escrow funds and the remaining principal was reamortized with payments due in

annual instaliments of $93,875 including accrued interest through May 17, 2019.

The Town currently has seven [eases outstanding for various vehicles and equipment. Annual payments
range from $42,065 to $141,532, Expiration dates range from March 2008 to May 2013. Interest rates

vary from 2.94% to 3.82%.

The gross value of all assets recorded under capital jeases and installment finance contracts is $7,202,768.
The following is an analysis of the assets recorded under capital leases and installment finance contracts in

the Town’s at June 30, 2007:

Classes of Property Cost
Building § 4,000,000
Vehicles and equipment 3,202,768
Total 7,202,768

A summary of changes in the Governmental iong-term debt follpws:

QOutstanding Quistanding Current
July 1, 2006  Increases  Decreases  June 30, 2007 Portion
BY TYPE OF DERT
Finance Contract $4,214,715 ($610,031) $3,604,684 $572,018
Capital Leases 1,131,231 880,526  (634,944) - 1,376,813 502,920
Compensated Absences 356,384 291,679  (256,531) 391,532 291,679
5,705,330 1,172,205 (1,501,506) 5,373,029 1,366,617
A summary of changes in the Business type long-term debt follows:
General General
Long-term Cebt Long-term Debt  Current
July 1, 2006 Increases Decreases June 30, 2007 Portion
BY TYPE OF DEBT :
Finance Contract $ 950,688 § (51,950} % 888,738 $ 59,658
Capital Leases 168,105 BG, 650 {BB, 401} 166,354 68,569
Compensated Absences ) 31,478 30,488 {25,875} 36,091 30,488
1,150,271 117,138 (176,228} 1,091,183 158,715
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b. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Compensated absences have been liquidated in the General Fund as foliows:

Balance Balance

July 1, 2006 Farned  Used July 1, 2007
General Fund

General Government $91,744 575,984 454,001 $113,727
Public Safety 181,895 138,625 124,736 195,784
Public Works/Transportation 28,815 51,367 28917 51,265
Environmental Protection 53,930 25,703 48,877 30,756
£3565,384 $291,679 $256,531 $39L,532
Proprietary Fund ' $31,478 $30,488 $25875  $35,09

A summary of General government debt service obligations is as follows:

Year Ending .
June 30 Principal Interest
2008 $ 1074938 ¢ 315621
2009 905,948 254,009
2010 731,304 201,559
2011 515176 156,366
2012 324,953 126,583
2013 - 2017 1,234,086 285,546
2018 - 2022 194,092 11,121
Total 4,581,497 1,351,905
A summary of Business-type debt service obligations is as follows:
Year Ending
June 30 Prindipal Inberest
2008 $ 128227 % 40,050
2009 109,412 35,435
2010 76,247 31,391
2011 79,163 28,475
2012 82,192 25447
2013 -2m7 402,414 80,713
2018 - 2022 177,437 10,312
Toial _ 1,055,002 251,833
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Amortization of assets acquired under capital leases in Enterprise Funds is included in depreciation. At
June 30, 2007 the Town of Nags Head, North Carclina, has a legal debt margin of $236,446,770.

7. Qperating Leases

The Town entered into an operating lease for the lease of six copiers effective November 19, 2004 for g
period of 60 months. The lease calls for minimum monthly rental payments and per copy maintenance
charges based on actual usage.

Total minimum lease payments for the remaining term of the contract at June 30, 2007, are as follows:

2008 $ 6,808
2009 5,808
2010 _ 2,269
Total $15.865

During the year ended June 30, 2007, the total amount expended by the Town under the above operating
lease was $9,247 including both minimum monthly rentals and per copy charges.

Under a separate {ease agreement effective August 30, 2003, the Town leases ane copier for a period of
60 months in the amount of $213 per month plus monthly copy charges of $115 per month which includes
up to 11,500 copies. Copies in excess of that amount are additionai.

Total minimum lease payments for the remaining term of the contract at June 30, 2007, are as foliows:

2008 $3,933
2009 656
Total $4,589

During the year ended June 30, 2007, the total amount expended by the Town under the above operating
lease was $3,971 including both minimum monthiy rentals and overage per copy charges.

The Town assisted the Outer Banks Family YMCA in obtaining tax exempt financing for the YMCA property
located within the Town of Nags Head. The Town acquired titie to the YMCA property and borrowed funds
from the Bank of America in the amount of $3,721,000. The terms of the loan call for varying quarterly
principal payments over fifteen years with interest determined quarterly as 65% of London Interbank
Offering Rate (LIBOR) plus 1,14% per annum. The Town has entered into an agreement to lease the
property to the YMCA for the total of the amount due under the financing arrangement and has no
financial responsibility beyond lease payments. The total payments received under this operating lease for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 were $415,838 and the payments made were $328,000 in principal
and $87,838 in interest.
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8. Interfund Balances and Activity

The balance sheet for Government Funds shows a liability in the General Fund of $156,548 and a
corresponding receivable in the Capital Reserve Fund. The originai advance amount of $438,481
represents reimbursement of funds collected in the Capital Reserve Fund originally intended to offset the

cost of the municipal complex. Instead these funds were used to pay off the higher interest rate Fire
Station debt. This amount is to be paid back from the General Fund to the Capital Reserve Fund with fire
facility fee revenues. The amounts and timing of the repayments wiil be determined by avaflability of
collected fees and decided by the Board of Commissioners. During the current year, repayment was made
in the amount of $45,225,

The balance sheet fur the Government Funds shows an asset in the General Fund of $73,776 and a
corresponging payable in the Beach and Sound Access Project Fund, These funds were used for
construction costs for access projects and will be reimbursed by grant funds for the project costs when
received.

Transfers to/from other funds for the year ended June 30, 2007 consisted of the following:

From the General Fund to the Capital Resarve Fund 3 84,948
for future capita! purchases '

From the General Fund to the Storm Water Fund _ 41,766
for additional funding for start up costs

From the Capital Reserve Fund to the General Fund 180,042
for current year capital purchases

From the Capital Reserve Fund to the Beach & Sound 8,850
Access Project Fund for current year capital purchases

Total $ 315,606

9. On-Behalf of Payments for Fringe Benefits and Salaries

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the Town has recoghized on-behalf payments for pension
contributions made by the State as a revenue and an expenditure of $9,822 for the 42 volunteer firemen
who perform fire fighting duties for the Town's fire departmant and on-behalf payments of $9,822 as a
revenue and an expenditure. The volunteers and employees elected to be members of the Firemen and
Rescue Squad Workers’ Pension Fund, a cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee retirement
system established and administered by the State of North Carolina. The plan is funded by a $10 monthly
contribution paid by each member, investment income, and State appropriation.
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IV. Joint Ventures

The Town and the members of the Town’s fire department each appoint two members to the five-member
local board of trustees for the Firemen’s Relief Fund, The State Insurance Commissioner appoints one
additional member to the local board of trustees. The Firemen’s Relief Fund is funded by a portion of the
fire and lightening insurance premiums that insurers remit to the State. The State passes these moneys to
the local board of the Firemen’s Relief Fund. The funds are used ko assist fire fighters in various ways.
The participating governments do not have any equity interest in the joint venture, so no equity has been
reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2006. The Firemen's Relief Fund does not issue separate
audited financial statements. Instead, the local board of trustees files an annual financial report with the
State Firemen’s Association. This report can be obtained from the Association at Post Office Box 188,
Farmville, NC 27828,

V. Suntmary Disclosure of Commitments and Contingencies
A. Federal and State Assisted Programs

The Town has received proceeds from several federal and State grants. Periodic audits of these grants are
. required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant

agreements. Such audits could result in the refund of grant moneys to the grantor agencies.

Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial. No provision has been made in the

accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant moneays.

B. Jennette’'s Pier

During the year ending June 30, 2003 the Town agreed conceptually to participate in the acquisition by
The North Carolina Aquarium Saciety of the Jennette’s Pier property by making a one time contribution of
$300,000, based on a mutually agreed to Memorandum of Understanding between and among various
agencies of North Carolina State Government, Dare County and The Town of Nags Head. This was
recorded as a payable at that time. As of Cctober 7, 2005 a Memorandum of Understanding was enterad
into between The Town, Dare County, the North Caralina Aquarium Society, The North Carolina
Aquariums, and the Clean Water Management Trust and payment of the $300,000 was made to Clean
Water Management Trust at that time. The transfer of this property from the North Carolina Aguarium
Society to the Narth Carolina Aquariums is anticlpated to take place in the fall of 2007. Design plans for
the renovation of the property are complete and construction could begin as early as the spring of 2008
with completion by the spring of 2¢10.

€. Municipal Waste Management Agreement

On December 23, 1993, the Town entered into a Municipal Waste Management Agreement with Dare
County, a member of the Albemarle Regional Solid Waste Authority, for disposal of solid waste. The
contract extends for twenty years. Charges are based on the Town's actual tonnage of solid waste; the
rate in effect in the 2006-2007 year was $61.16 per ton.

D. Volunteer Fire Department Agreement
The Board of Commissioners raintains an agreement with the Nags Head Volunteer Fire Department
(NHVFD) that calls for incentive pay based on an individual members qualifications and call response.

Billing for the incentive is based on the twelve-month period of Novemnber through October each year.
Under the agreement, it is the obiligation of NHVFD to provide an accurate accounting of the incentive
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earned at various intervals during the year including the Town’s fiscal year end. The amount expended
under this agreement in the current fiscal year was $19,682. The method aof calculation of incentive pay
was amended by the Board of Commissioners during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2006 as was the
twelve month period for caleulation to coincide with the Town's fiscal year from July through June. The
amount expended under this agreement for the partial year of December 2005 through June 2006 was
$2,750. The amount expended under this agreement for the full year ending June 30, 2007 was $8,500
plus an additional $650 in related FICA.

E. Intangible Water Rights

The Town entered into an agreement with Dare County and the Town of Kill Devil Hills to construct a
reverse asmosis (R.0.) water desalination plant. Under this agreement, the Town agrees to fund the
capital cost of the R.Q. project on a pro rata basis as related to the water capacities allocated to each of

the three parties. The Town's tota] original cost was $3,614,000. Subsequent costs of $589,620 were
incurred for the Town's share of additional projects including well field expansions. The Town has the
right to water produced from the R.O. plant. Presently, the Town's share is 1,000,000 gallons per day.

The intangible water rights are being amortized over 40 years. This time period corresponds to the
estimated useful life of the R.O. water desalination plant. At June 30, 2006, accumulated amortization
totaled $1,804,457.

On August 21, 1996, the Town approved a revised agreement with Dare County and the Town of Kill Devil
Hills which allocates three million five hundred thousand gallons per day of water from the system
capacity, inclusive of expansions. Nags Head will bear all costs and expenses associated with expansions
requested or required by the Town. This agreement was signed on QOctober 4, 1996.

F. Fresh Pond Operations

As part of the agreement with Dare County and the Town of Kill Devii Hills, the Town of Nags Head
operates the Fresh Pond surface water facility for the regional system., The terms of the agreement require
the Town to provide an annual accounting to the Regional Water System and to settle any difference in
water revenues and expenses. Pursuant to the Regional Water System agreement, Fresh Pond Capital as
of June 1996 js to be used for capital expenditures of Fresh Pond. After this amount is exhausted, Dare
County, Kill Devit Hills and the Town will share in capital expenditures evenly. All funds previously set
aside for capital expenditures under this agreament have been expended as of June 30, 2007. In the case
of capital expenditures in excess of $100,000, each entity must agree to fund their share or accept a
reduction in their allocation from the Fresh Pond water supply. During the fiscat year ending June 30,2007
the Town received $181,748 from the Regional Water System in reimbursement of excess operating costs
fram the prior fiscal year and an additional $90,890 from both Dare County and Kill Devil Hills for their
share of Frash Pond capital expenditures.

G. Water Impact Fees

The Town entered into a letter of understanding with the Ammons-Dare Corporation (its successors and
assigns) for the provision of water to the Village of Nags Head Development. The Town guarantees 1,000
water cansumption units (WCU} will be available for the development. Ammons-Dare Corporation has
agreed to pay an impact fee of $2,000 per WCU in advance in the form of an irrevocabie letter of credit in
the amount of $2,000,000. As of June 30, 2006, draws in the amount of $2,000,000 have been made by
the Town on this letter of credit, and Ammans-Dare Corporation has utilized 691 WCU's which are
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guaranteed by the Town and are valued at $1,382,000. The Town reimbursed Ammons-Dare Corporation
for 100 unused WCU's in the amount of $206,000 during the fiscal year ending June 30, 1992, 50 unused
WCU's in the amount of $100,000 during the fiscal year ending June 30, 1993, 15 units in the amount of
$30,000 during the fiscal year ending June 30, 1995, and 31 urits in the amount of $62,000 in the year
ended June 30, 1996. The remaining 113 WCU's In the amount of $226,000 represent the balance due
under the letter of understanding and are included in the Water Fund balance sheet as unearned revenue.
Should any of the remaining WCU'’s be unused, the Town agrees to reimburse Ammons-Dare Corporation,
its successors and assigns, at any time after September 4, 1991.

H. Facility Fees

The Town enacted a Facility Fee ordinance on 3uiy 3, 1989, Facility fees are imposed on new development
or censtruction requiring a building permit. These fees will be used to fund capital expenditures
associated with increased Police, Fire, Administration, and Solid Waste Collection Services necessitated by

new development. A fee for Recreation Faclilities was added effective January 1, 2000, The facility fees are
deposited in a separate interest-bearing account. The interest earned shali be used solely for purposes
specified in the account.

For the year ended June 30, 2007, the folloewing Facility Fee Revenue (including interest) was collected in
the General Fund:

Admlnistration 4 15,450
Fire 16,5598
Pallce 27,048
Sanitation 14,878
Recraation 10,935

Total B4,949

Facility fees are to be spent for capital expenditures within ten years of collection of the fees. In the event
that the funds are unexpended, the Town is obligated to refund the fees to the eligible property owner
after the ten-year period expires.

At June 30, 2007, the facility fees were transferred to the Capital Reserve Fund where they will remain
unti] funds are needed for appropriate capital expenditures.

During the year ended June 30, 2007, administration facility fees in the amount of $31,500 and police
facility fees in the amount of $13,500 were used toward the municipal complex debt. Police facility fees of
$11,533 were used for a portion of new police vehicle debt. Fire facility fees of $45,225 were used toward
the interfund loan used to satisfy the previcus fire station debt. There was $9,000 in sanitation facility
fees used toward the debt for new equipment. Lastly, $8,850 in recreation facility fees was used for
partial funding of the town hall beach access project in the Beach and Sound Access Project Fund.
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As of June 30, 2007, the following balances of facility fees remained, and are included in the Capital
Reserve Fund:

Administration

Fire

Palice

Sanitation

Recreation
Total

$

143,548
31,519
187,116
15,164
19,503

396,950

The following scheduie summarizes facility fees collected and used from the inception of the fees to date:

Facility Fees Collected (inclusive of interest):

FY 89-90
FY 90-91
FY 91-92
FY 92-93
FY 93-94
Fr 94-95
FY 95-26
FY 96-57
FY 97-58
FY 98-39
FY 99-00
FY 00-01
FY 01-D2
FY 02-03
FY 03-04
FY 04-05
FY 05-06
FY 0&6-07

Total

Admin. Fira Folice Sanitation Recreation Total
$§ 29114 % 19035 ¢ 7179 $ 16548 % - % 71,876
17,704 15,761 6,293 10,194 - 49,952
24,115 27,159 11,204 15,236 - 77,714
24,392 16,237 6,509 12,473 - 59,611
23,758 24,740 10,317 12,476 - 71,291
25,965 27,202 11,743 17,074 - 81,984
28,330 28,125 12,570 19,832 - 88,857
22,811 11,699 5,322 9,682 - 49,514
34,009 15,243 15,749 10,406 - 75,407
45,061 23,584 28,535 19,367 - 116,547
45,953 31,570 43,067 24,451 14,473 159,924
64,457 65,526 102,658 47,078 41,911 322630
64,532 34,245 43,253 30,466 42,338 214,874
&£3,155 36,834 50,102 33571 38,719 222,381
39,368 16,506 18,221 10,109 28,633 112,937
33,300 45,226 75,807 23,782 23,479 201,554
24,395 14,920 20,474 13,677 23,030 95,495
15,490 16,598 27,048 14 878 10,935 84,949

$ 2,158,538

$ 625900 $ 471,710 $ 496,091 $ 341,310 § 223,518
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Facility Fees Used.:

Admin, Fire Police Sanitation Recreation Total

FY 89-90
FY 90-91
FY 91-92 % 30,000 $ 20,000 $ 50,000
FY 92-93 $ 6,520 5,520
FY 93-94 26,247 4,097 30,344
FY 94-95 26,247 4,097 30,344
FY 95-56 75,765 75,765
FY 96-97 $ 160,000 40,000 5,000 205,000
FY 9798 10,000 5,000 5,000 20,000
Fr 98-99 35,000 16,120 51,120
FY 99-00 31,500 26,342 28,434 18,854 105,740
FY 00-01 31,500 23,584 13,500 19818 ¢ 7.085 05,467
FY D1-02 31,500 31,870 48,227 71,677 44,000 227,374
FY 02-03 31,500 66,526 13,500 36,716 25,000 173,242
FY 03-04 h&,861 40,551 60,601 50,999 42,000 251,052
FY 04-05 31,500 30,667 18,648 52,356 25,000 158,171
FY 05-06 31,500 16,427 25,198 36,716 52,000 151,841
FY 06-07 31,500 45,225 25,033 9,000 3,850 115,608

Total 482,361 440,191 308,975 326,146 203,915 1,761 588

Remalning 143, 548 31,519 187,116 15,164 19,603 396,950

1. Hurricane Recovery

The Town of Nags Head entered into agreements to complete infrastructure repairs/replacements
necessitated by Hurricane Isabel in September 2003. As of June 30, 2007, all contracts for the emergency
berm project, the road repair project and the beach emergency berm project had been completed and
reimbursement had been received except for $280,914 for the costs of sprigging the emergency berm.
This reimbursement was initially denled by FEMA and subsequently appealed by the Town. No final
decision has yet been received. The costs were reported as expenditures in the year incurred and no
receivable or revenue has been recorded by the Town related to reimbursement of these costs.

J. Beach Nourishment

On November 2, 2005, the Town adopted a capital project ordinance for Beach Nourishment with an
estimated cost of $27,697,850 to be funded by bond proceeds in the amount of $26,997,850 and a
contribution from the General Fund in the amount of $700,000. This project ordinance was amended on
December 20, 2006 to increase the total estimated costs of the project to $32,700,000 with $24,000,000
funded by bond proceeds, $8,000,000 funded by contribution from Dare County, and the remaining
$700,000 funded by a transfer from the General Fund. The initial phase of that project is a contract for
the engineering and construction oversight in the amount of $1,592,500. The contract allows for
cancellation at any time by either party upon payment of costs incurred through the date of cancellation.
The bond referendum held during April 2007 was not approved by all districts as required for the issuance
of bonds to fund the project. 1t is the intent of the Board to continue through completion of the permitting
process with costs incurred through that date funded by the transfer from the General Fund. The total
amount expended under this contract at June 30, 2006 was $200,347. During the year ended June 30,
2007, an additional $206,117 was expended under this contract, in addition to, $21,701 in attorneys fees
related to the project and the referendum.
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

The fallowing schedule summarizes facility fees collected and used from the inception of the fees to date:

Facility Fees Collected {inclusive of interest):

Admin. Fire Palice Sanitation Recreation Total
FY 89-90 § 29114 ¢ 19035 ¢ 7,179 ¢ 16548 4 - % 71,876
FY 90-91 17,704 15,761 6,293 10,194 - 49,952
FY 91-92 24,115 27,159 11,204 15,236 - 77,714
FY 92-93 24,392 16,237 6,509 12,473 - 59,611
FY 93-94 23,758 24,740 10,317 12,476 - 71,291
FY 94-95 25,965 27,202 11,743 17,074 - 81,984
FY 95-96 28,330 28,125 12,570 19,832 - 88,857
FY 96-97 22,811 11,599 5,322 9,682 - 49,514
FY 97-98 34,009 15,243 15,749 10,406 - 75,407
FY 98-99 45,061 23,584 28,535 15,367 - 116,547
FY 99-00 45,953 31,970 43,067 24,461 14,473 159,924
FY 00-01 64,457 66,526 102,658 47,078 41,911 322,630
FY 01-02 54,532 34,245 43,293 30,456 42,338 214,874
FY D2-03 83,155 36,834 50,102 33,571 38,719 222,381
FY 03-04 39,368 16,606 18,221 10,109 28,633 112,937
FY 04-05 33,300 45,226 75,807 23,782 23,479 201,594
FY 05-06 24,395 14,920 20,474 13,677 23,030 96,496
FY D6-07 15,450 16,598 27 048 14,878 10,935 84,549

Total § 625909 ¢ 47L,71G ¢ 496,091 $ 341,310 § 223,518 ¢ 2,158,538

Facility Fees Used:

Admin. Fire Palige Sanitation  Recreation Total

FY 85-90
FY 90-91
FY 91-92 $ 30,000 3 20,000 $ 50,000
FY 92-93 % 6520 6,520
FY 93-94 26,247 4,067 30,344
FY 94-95 26,247 4,097 30,344
FY 95-96 75,765 ) 75,765
FY 95-97 $ 160,000 40,000 5,000 205,000
FY 97-95 1G,000 5,000 5,000 20,000
FY 98-99 35,000 16,120 51,120
FY 99-00 31,500 26,942 28,434 18,864 105,740
FY 00-01 31,500 23,584 13,500 19,818 § 7,065 95,457
FY 01-02 31,500 31,970 48,227 71,677 44,00 227,374
FY 02-03 31,500 66,5260 13,500 36,716 25,000 173,242
FY 03-04 56,861 40,591 60,601 50,999 42,000 251,052
FY 04-05 31,500 30,657 18,648 52,356 25,000 158,171
FY DS-06 31,500 16,427 25,158 35,716 52,000 161,841
FY 06-07 31,500 45,225 25,033 9,000 8,850 115,608

Total 482,361 440,191 308,975 326,146 203,915 1,761,588

Remaining 143,548 31,51% 187,116 15,164 19,603 396,950
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Notes ta the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

I. Hurricane Recovery

The Town of Nags Head entered into agreements to complete infrastructure repairs/replacements
necessitated by Hurricane Isabel in September 2003. As of June 30, 2007, all contracts for the emergency
berm project, the road repair project and the beach emergency berm project had been completed and
reimbursement had been received except for $280,914 for the costs of sprigging the emergency berm.
This reimbursement was initially denied by FEMA and subsequently appealed by the Town. No final
decision has yet been received. The costs were reported as expenditures in the year incurred and no
receivable or revenue has been recorded by the Town related to reimbursement of these costs.

J. Beach Nourishment

On November 2, 2005, the Town adopted a capital project ordinance for Beach Nourishment with an
estimated cost of $27,697,850 to be funded by band proceeds in the amount of $26,997,850 and a
contribution from the General Fund in the amount of $700,000. This project ordinance was amended on
December 20, 2006 to increase the total estimated costs of the project to $32,700,000 with $24,000,000
funded by bond proceeds, $8,000,000 funded by contribution from Dare County, and the remaining
$700,000 funded by a transfer from the Genera! Fund. The initial phase of that project is a contract for
the engineering and censtruction oversight in the amount of $1,592,500, The contract allows for
cancellation at any time by either party upon payment of costs incurred through the date of cancellation.
The band referendum held during April 2007 was not approved by all districts as required for the issuance
of bonds to fund the project. It is the intent of the Board to continue through completion of the permitting
process with costs incurred thraugh that date funded by the transfer from the General Fund. The total
amount expended under this contract at June 30, 2006 was $200,347. During the year ended June 30,
2007, an additional $206,117 was expended under this contract, in addition to, $21,701 in attorneys fees
related to the project and the referendurm. :




Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress

Schedule A-1

Actuarial Accrued

. Actuarial Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded UAAL as a
Valuation  Value of -Projected Uit AAL Funded Covered % of Covered
Date Assets Credit {UAAL) Ratio Payrali Payroll
(a) (b} (b-a) (afb} (Q [(b-a)/c]
12/31/1957 49,502 66,480 16,978 74.46% 571,738 2.97%
12/31/19%8 62,331 83,495 21,164 74.65% 656,523 3.22%
12/31/19599 71,819 81,751 9,932 87.85% 579,505 1.71%
12/31/2000 88,268 145,789 57,521 60.55% 673,137 8.55%
12/31/2001 90,229 178,317 88,088 50.60% 771,135 11.42%
12/31/2002 90,891 182,538 91,647 49.79% 815,534 11.24%
12/31/2003 151,541 212,074 60,533 71.46% 915,380 6.61%
12312004 184,675 250,217 65,542 73.81% 1,026,938 6.38%
12/31/2005 217,715 241,698 23,983 90.08% 1,021,727 2.35%
12/31/2006 256,998 301,635 44,638 85.20% 1,058,590 4.22%

* Valuations beginning December 31, 2000 reflect a change in actuarial assumptions
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Employer Contributions

Schedule A-2

Year Ended Annuai Required Percantage
June 30 Contribution Contributerd
1997 5310 100.00%
1998 7,398 52.62%
1999 8,503 74.46%
2000 10,300 74.65%
2001 g,148 87.85%
2002 15,773 60.55%
2003 18,854 50.50%
2004 17,883 49.79%
2005 7,225 71.46%
2006 (5,653) 73E1%
2007 ' {13,808) 90.08%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules
was determined as part of the actuarial valuations at the dates
indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial

valuation follows.

Valuation date

Actuarial cost methed

Amortization method

Remaining amortization peripd

Assat valuation method

Actuarial assumpttons:
Investment rate of return
Projected salary increases *
* Includes inflation at

Cost-of-living adjustments

12/31/2006
Projected unit credit

Level percent of pay closed
25 years

Market value

7.25%
45-12.3%
3.75%

N/A
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Schedule 1

TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA Page1ofi2
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2007
Variance
Cver
Budget Actual (Under)
REVENUES
Ad Valorem Taxes.
Current year % 4,414,659
Prior year {428)
DMV current year 58,362
DMV priar year {62B)
Penalties and interast 10,412
Total 4,363,353 4,482 387 119,034
Other Taxes and Licenses:
Occupancy tax 1,770,246
Land Transfer tax 652,435
Local governmental sales tax B86,005
1/2% sales tax revenue 742,607
Privilege licenses 38,995
Mixed beverage tax 36,893
Privilege license penalties 1,822
Total 4,149,500 4,129,003 {20,497)
Intergovernmental Revenues:
Unrestricted: _
Utility/ Telecomrnunications Franchise tax 293,464
Beer and wine 14,121
ABC revenue 14,365
Total 354,500 321,950 (32,550}
Restricted:
Contributions from govermmental units 57,760
State Street Aid allocation 132,433
DCM Grant 29,322
Crug Fund revenue 6,704
CAMA Reimbursement 6,580
Tatal 385,965 232,799 (153,166)
Total Intergovernmental Revenues 740,465 554,749 (185,716}

Permits and Fees:

Buflding permits

Facility fees

Inspection and review fees
Cable franchise Fees

231,959
84,948
59,070

121,766
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TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Beach driving permits
CAMA permits
Motor vehlcle licenses

Total

Special Assessments:
Pond Istand Project

Total

Sales and Sewiﬁes:
Court costs and fees

Total
Investment Earnings

Qther Revenues:

¥MCA Rents

Sale of materials

Miscellaneous

Sale of assets

Damage recovery

Civll Penalties

Contributions to Police, Fire &
Rescue Benevaolent Fund

Total

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

General Government:
Governing Body:

Fees paid to elected officlals
FICA expense

Contracted services

Contracted services - beach nourishment

Other supplies, computers
Capital qutlay, art

Department supplies and mabertals

Special events

Dues and subscriptions
Printing

Travel

Telephona

Budget

Actual

Schedule 1
Page 2 of 12

Variance

Owver

{Under)

614,150

12,189
21,200
269

531,441

(82,709)

500

499

499

(1)

9,000

5331

5,331

(2,669)

510,000

46,768

737,721

556,768

450,838
20,604
59,914
53,425
11,262

9,150

12,135

617,328

(120,393)

11,124,689

10,878,506

(246,183)

26,443
2,022
49,968
7,398
1,427

9,459
2,856
3,918
3,150
3,444

568




TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Schedule 1
Page 3 of 12

Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Training

Equipment rental

Ermplayee incentive

Contribution to YMCA

Contributfon bo Nags Head Woods
Contribution to Wright Flight

Contribition OB Criticai Incident Debriefing
Contributions, miscellansous

Total

Special Projects:
YMCA principal passthrough
YMCA interest passthrough

Total

Administration;

Salaries and wages

FICA expense

Group insurance

Group insurance - retiree
Retirement

401(k) account
Contracted services
Travel

Advertising
Capartmental supplies
Dues and subscriptions
Equipment; rental
Telephone

Emplayee training
Postage

Career development
Professional fees

Other supplies
Reimbursernent from Water Fund

Total

Administrative Services:
Salarfes and wages

FICA expense

GGroup insurance expense

Budgek

Actual

Variance
Qver
{Linder}

207,772

964
281
275
5,000
14,000
1,000
500
100

132,982

74,790

554,710

328,000
87,6838

415,838

138,872

451,363

299,745
20,427
38,171

4,723
11,313
8,002
50,435
4,099
5,213
9,269
2,372
3,971
3,462
1,650

393,533

57,830

59

306,698
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TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Retirement;

401{k} account

Unemployment expense

Insurance:

Contracted services

Employee training

Professional services
Departmental supplies and materials
Postage

Telephone

Travel

Other supplies

Equipment rental

Printing

Repalrs and maintenance, equipment
{Career development

Wellness program

Personnel Committee

Special conkracted services

Dues and subscriptions

Purchases far resale

Contracted services, website
Advertising

Repairs and maintenance, vehicles

Automotive supplies
Reimbursement from Water Fund
Capital outlay, equipment

Debt service, capital lease

Deht service, interest

Total

Information Technology:

Salaries and wages

FICA expense

Group insurance

Retirement

401({k) accaunt

Contracted services

Contracted services, GIS

Contracted services, website
Contracted services, annual cantracts
Prafessional sarvices

Pepartmental supplies

Travel

Advertising

Telephane

Postage

Career development, other

Repairs and maintenance, equipment

&0

Budget

Actual

Schedule 1
Page 4 of 12

Variance

Owver
{(Under)

947,772

14,410
8,850
2,832

250,290

14,458

9,253
134,000

11,473
7,149
3,554
7,736
5,998
4,820
1,942
1,356

277
285
1,652
837
1,719
962
500
519
473

1,162

(127,056)
12,598
184,986

41,300

872,873

74,899

72,528
5,508
5,298
3,078
1,891
5,310
3,991
9,500

40,625
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TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Schedule 1
Page 5 of 12

Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Other supplies

Internet costs

Emplayee training

Equipment rental

Dues and subscripticns
Relmbursement from Water Fund
Capital outlay, equipment

Total

Planning and Development:
Salaries and wages

FICA expense

Group insurance

Group insurance - retireg
Retirement

401{k} account

Planning board, board of adjustiment
Professional services
Departmental supplles

Travel

Advertising

Telsphone

Postage

Repairs and maintenance, vehicles
Repairs-and maintenance, equipment
Other supplies

Uniforms

Automotive supplies

Employee training

Career development, other

Equipment rental

Dues and subscriptions

Printing

Land Use Ptan Grant
Reimbursement from Water Fund
Capital outiay, DCM Harvey site
Debt service, capital [ease

Debt service, Interest

Total

61

Budget

Actual

Variance
Cwer
fUnder)

209,153

15,700
8,248
4,769

15,165
311
(52,111)

33424

184,723

24,430

845,508

583,362
43,100
72,290

3,470
28,487
17,513
10,950
10,995

8,658

7,573

7,332

5,289

1,941

1,659

708

3,560

1,888

5,260

3,999

420

1,617
3,069
1,157
2,074
(71,873)
12,616
7,338
539

774,992

70,516




Schedule 1

TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA Page 8 of 12
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2007
Variance
. Owver
Budget Actual {Under}
Legal Services:
Professional services 65,919
Reimbursement from Water Fund (3,033}
Total 76,967 52,886 14,081
Total General Government 3,293,245 2,837,827 455,418
Public Safety:
Police Department:
Salaries and wages 1,086,415
FICA expense 80,801
Group insurance 163,804
Group insurance - retiree 2,286
Retirement 51,524
401 (k) account 51,806
Separation allowance 36,655
Automotive supplies 53,972
Departmental supplies 45,305
Repairs and maintenance, vehicles 11,089
Repairs and maintenance, equipment 21,081
Telephone 14,785
Other supplies 6,241
Uniforms 14,261
Career development 5,588
Equipment rental 2,980
Travel 5,008
Professional services 10,117
Employee training 2,709
Repairs and maintenance, range 490
Postage 1,431
Dues and subscriptions 1,237
Advertising 164
Contracted services 1,195
Reimbursement from Wate Fund (21,946)
{apital outlay, equipment 79,901
Debt service, capital lease 123,541
Debt service, interest 5,454
Total 2,180,822 1,866,295 314,527
Brug Forfeiture:
Department supplies 1,621
Total 6,007 1,621 4,386
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TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedula of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Variance

Fire Department;

Salaries and wages

FICA expense

Group insurance
Retirement expense
401(k) account
Departmental supplies
Repairs and maintenance, vehicles
Uniforms

Repairs and maintenance, equipment
Automative supplies
Telephone

Employee training

0OSHA Compliance

Career development
Travel

Safety training

Other supplies

Equipment rental

Dues and subseriptions
Professional services
Postage

Contracted Services
Printing

Advertising

Grant, MCLM Safaty

Debt service, capltal lease
Debt service, interest

Tatal

Volunteer Fire;
Incentive pay

FICA expense
Uniforms

Dues and subscriptions
Training

Travel

Professional services
Retirement
Department supplies

Total

Budget

Actual

Schedule 1
Paga 7 of 12

Over

{Under)

2,684,964

1,180,282
85,710
210,259
60,136
35,406
79,670
18,292
18,986
13,985
16,748
5,075
4,767
5,068
8,639
3,480
10,271
9,231
1,480
2,460
8,800
455
890
567

158
1,000
249,682

5.1[38?

2,082,864

602,080

47,892

8,500
650
3,041
347
260
55
8,734
11,082
7,138

39,848

8,044




TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Schedula 2
Page B8 of 12

Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

QOcean Rescue:

Salaries and wages

FICA expense

GGroup insurance
Retirement expense
401{k] account
Departmental supplies
Other supplies

Uniforms

Automotive supplies
Repairs and maintenance, equipment
Travel

Repairs and maintenance, vehicles
Professional fees
Telephone

Employee training
Printing

Dues and subscriptions
Advertising :
Postage

Capital outlay, equipment
Debt service, capital lease
Debt service, interest

Total

Anlmal Control;
Salaries and wages
FICA expense

Group Insurance
Retirement

401{K} account
Automotive supplies
Departmental supplies
Repairs and maintenance, vehicles
Professional fees
Equipment rental
Empioyes training
Travel

Teiephone

Unlfarms

Printing
Total

Total Public Safety

Budget Actual

Yarlance
Over

{Under)

391,994
19,278
4,798
2,171
1,345
33,719
1,427
10,736
9,988
4,674

564,593 513,089

51,904

42,318
3,155
7,528
2,023
2,116
2,500
1,467
1,240

285
241

35

20
488
894
265

71,781 64,575

7,206

2,996,459 4,568,312

588,147




TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Schedule 1
Page 3of12

Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Environmental Probection:
Sanltation:

Salaries and wages

FICA expense

Group insurance

Retirement

401(k) acoount

Repairs and maintenance, vehicles
Automotive supplies
Denartment supplies

Other supplies

Uniforms

Contracted services

Racycling

Repairs and maintenance, equipment
Professional Fees :
Travel

Employee training

Dues and subscriptions

Capital outlay, building

Capltal outlay, equipmant
Capital outlay, ather

Debt service, capital lease

Debt service, interest
Total

Solld Waste:
Tipping fees

Total

Total Environmental Protection

Budget

Actual

Variance
Cver

{Under)

1,442 179

423,195
31,192
77,653
19,745
12,139
127,208
81,952
25,871
1,945
8,244
18,586
4,347
3,719
81
1,215
709
401
1,998
57,749
2,658

273,135

25,132

1,198,874

243,305

611,600

593,256

593,256

18,344

2,053,779

1,792,130

261,649
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TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Schedule 1
Page 10 of 12

Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Public Works:
Administration:

salaries and wages

FICA expense

Group insurance

Group insurance - retiree
Retirement

401 (k) account
Contracted services
Purchase far resale
Telephone

Departtnental supplies
Advertising

Travel

Equipment rantal
Automotive suppiies
Employee training

Career development
Cues-and subsctiptions
Postage

Repairs and raintenance, vehicles
Uniforms

Professional fees
Reimbursement from Water Fund
Debt service, capital lease
Dabt service, interest

Total

Public Facilitles Maintenance:
Salaries and wages

FICA expense

Group insurance

Group insurance, retiree
Retirement

401(k) account

Repairs and malntenance, facilities
LUtilities

Contracted services
Department supplles

Repairs and malntenance, equipment

Signs
Automotive supplles
Repairs and maintenance, other

b6

Budget

Actual

Variance
Cwer
fUnder)

353,438

246,344

18,017
31,408
10,728
11,820
7,271
910
18,605
7,552
5,600
189
721
1,587
2,705
795
2,335
768
376
358
1,166
3,395

(104,578)

7,748

370

276,390

83,048

328,139
24,081
74,027

403
15,393
9,459
22,042

143,316
64,728
33,063
29,881

6,673
19,265
21,536




TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Career development

Other supplies

Professicnal services

tniforms

Repairs and maintenance, vehicles
Street supplies

Advertising

Dues and subscriptions
Reimbursement from Water Fund
Capital outtay, Multi use path
Capital outlay, land

Capital outlay, building

Capita! outlay, other Powell Bill
Debt sarvice, capital lease

Debt service, interest

Total

Maintenance Garage:

Safaries and wages

FICA account

Group insurance

Group insurance, refiree
Retlrement

401(k) account

Other supplies

Departmental supplies

Uniforms

Contracted services

Atomotive supplies

Repairs and maintenance, vehicles
Employee training

Repalrs and maintenance, equipment
Travel

Advertising

Professional fees

Dues and subscriptions
Reimbursement from Water Fund

Total

Budget Actual

Schedute 1
Page 11 of 12

Varlance
Owver

{Under)

671
7,992
10,466
4,668
7,522
14,493
74

69
(50,517)
10,153

4,602
893
114,250
64,148

4,790

1,243,954 985,280

257,684

156,619
11,723
24,995

5,015
7,431
4,421
9,471
13,421
3,349
465
1,515
598
872
678
464
105
525
34

{9,661}

269,805 232,040

37,765
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TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Schadule 1

Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Total Public Works
Contingency
Tolal Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Proceeds from capital lease

Transfers to Capltal Projects Funds {Net)
Transfer to Storm Water Fund

Apprapriated Fund Balance .

Other financing sources {uses), net

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

FUND BALANCE, beginning

FUND BALANCE, ending

63

Page 12 of 12
Variance
Cver
Butiget Actual {Under}
1,873,207 1,494,710 378,497
70,397 - 70,397
12,847,087 10,692 979 . 2,154,108
(1,722,398 185,527 1,907,925
880,525 880,526 -
110,042 05,094 (14,948)
(34,000} (41,766) (7,766)
765,830 - (765,830)
1,722,398 933,654 {788,544}
- 1,119,381 1,119,381

_ 8,826,552

_9,945,933




Revenues
Investment Earnfnos
Restricted Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expendltures
Capital Construction Ovarsight
Pumping Costs
Meblization
Caontingency
Other Costs

Tatal Expend|tures
Revenuas over funder) expendtures

Other Nnanclng saurces {uses):
Bond Proceeds ssued
Transfers from other funds
Total other financing sources {uses)

Revenues and cther sources
owver expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balanece, end of year

TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA
Beach Nourlshment Project Fund
Schadule of Revenues, Expendltures and Changes in Fund Balance

Schedule 2

Budget and Actual
From Inception and for the Fiscal ¥ear Ended June 30, 2007
Actual Yarlance
Project Frior Currenkt Tokal ta Crer
Autherlzatlon Years Yoar Date fUnder}
- $ 1,478 4 16,473 $ 17,951 & 17,851
8,000,000 - - - fB, 000,000}
8,000,000 _ 1478 16,473 17,951 (7,582,049}
1,592,500 200,347 206,117 408,463 1,186,036
28,002,150 - - - 28,002,150
1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
905,350 - - - 805,350
700,000 - 21,701 21,701 678,299
32,700,000 200,347 227,818 428,165 32,271,835
{24, 700,000] {198,86%) (211,345) {410,214} 24,289,786
24 000,000 - - - 24,000,000
700,000 700,000 - 700,000 -
24,700,000 700,000 - A0 000 {24,000,000)
3 - $ 501,131 (211,345) $ 289786 £ 289,786
501,131
$ 289,786
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TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA
Beach and Sound Accesses Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Revenues

Budget and Actual
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007
Actual
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Year
$ 306,858 - $ 69,630

Reastricted intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures
Baltic Street Access
June Street Access
Indigo Street Access
Bittern Street Access
Town Hall Access

Total Expenditures
Revenues over {under) expenditures
Cther financing sources (uses):
Transfer from Capital Reserve Fund
Appropriated fund balance

Total other financing sources {uses)

Revenues and other sources
over expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

306,858

153,208
51,000
50,000
26,100
35,400

_ 315708

{8,850)

8,850

8850

T

69,630

4,146
44,006
40,406
26,720
35,398

150678

' (81,046)

8,850

_ §85%0

$

(72,196)

(72,196)




Schedule 3

Variance
Total to Over
Date (Under}

§ 69,630 $ (237,228)

69,630 (237,228)
4,146 149,062
44,006 6,994
40,406 9,594
26,720 (620)
35,398 2
150,676 165,032
(81,046) (72,196)
8,850 -
8,850 -

$ (72,196) $  (72,196)
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Town of Nags Head, Nurth' Carolina

Water Fund

Scheduie of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual {(Non-GAAP) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Budget

REVENUES

Operating Revenues:

Water sales

Contributicn to Fresh Pend

Charges to other governmental units, Dare County
Rents

Tap and conpection fees

Late payment penalties and interest
Water cutoff tag fees

Damage recovery

Miscellanegus

Total 2,645,738

MNon-Operating Revenles:
Interest earned an investments
Impact fees

Total

210,000

Total Revenues 2,856,738

EXPENDITURES
Administration:

Salaries and wages

FICA expense

Group insurance

Group insurance - retirees
Retirement expense
401(k) account
Reimburse General Fund administrative expenses
Contracted services
Postage

Supplies and materials
Employee training

Bad debt

Total Administration 183,572

72

Schedule 4

Page Lol 5
Varianece
Over
Actual {Under)
$ 2,071,593
363,528
43,922
105,961
15,835
18,582
10,377
2,553
__ 3%0
_ 2,636,011 10,727

229,959

210,000

435,959

3,075 970

_—

51,523
3,570
17,043
3,020
2,512
1,544
60,653
16,791
7,659
1,094
610

4,000

170,019

229,959

_2192%

13553




Schedule 4

Town of Nags Head, North Carolina Paga 2of5
Water Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007
Variance
Crvgr
Budget Actuai {Unden
Septic Health:
Salaries and wages 43,186
FICA expense 3,177
Group insurance 7,528
Retirement 2,118
401(k) account 1,302
Contracted services 65,092
Reirnburse General Fund administrative expenses 99,980
Inspection rebakes 14,088
Pumping credits 1,440
Postage 1,602
Travel 127
Advertising 242
Telephone 478
Prirting - 2,403
Automotive supplies 375
Carear Development 1,322
Repairs and maintenance, vehicles Fi4
Departmental supplies 488
Dues and subscriptions 150
Total Septic Health 282,427 245,872 36,555
Operations:
Safaries and wages 182,877
FICA expense 12,678
Group insurance 45,539
Retirement 3,741
401(k) account 5,373
Purchases For resale 700,738
Reimburse General Fund administrative expenses 125,926
Insurance 34,328
Litilities 40,317
Contracted services 5.209
Departmental supplies 42,034
Professional fees ' 8,677
Other supplies 6,647
Repairs and maintanance, equipment 28,882
Postage 1,569
Telephane 4,166
Repairs and maintenance, bufldings 6,696
Uniferms 2,905
Dues and subscriptions 1,380
Equipment rental 1,217
Printing 1,893
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Town of Nags Head, North Carclina

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual {(Non-GAAP) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Automotive supplies
Employee training
Traval

Schedule 4

Page 3of 5
Water Fund
YVarlance
Ovear
Budget Actual {Under)
4,889
850
993
3538

Repairs and maintenance, vehicles
Tetal Operations

Fresh Pond Operations:

Salaries and wages

FICA expense

Group insurance

Retirement

401(k) account

Reimburse General Fund administrative expenses
Repairs and maintenance, equipment
Other supplies and materials
Insurance

Contracted services

Professional services

Departmental supplies

Utilities

Repalrs and malntenance, building
Telephone

Employee training

Travel

Printing

Postage

Tetal Fresh Pond Operations

Operations Distribution:
Salarfes and wages
FICA expense
Group insurance
Retirement
401(k) account
Reimburse General Find adminlstrative expenses
Contracted services
Other supplies
Repairs and maintenance, other
Insurance
Automobile supplies
Departmental supplies
Uniforms
Repalrs and maintenance, vehicles

1

;303,558 _ 1,278,162

12,204
847
2,495
584

359
101,453
17,915
28,997
6,376
6,219
75,528
8,001
2,949
5,498
91

655
1,847
127

123

303,497 272,259

231,712
16,210
59,267
11,267

6,927
126,988
588
9,227
36,665
5,031
9,770
5,636
3,442
1,192

74

25,436

_ 3128
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina

Water Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual {(Non-GAAP) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Telephonea

Dues and subscriptions

Advertising

Repairs and maintenance, equipment
Travel

Empleyee training

Professsional fees
Buildingfequipment rental

Total Operations Distribution

Budgetary Appropriations:
Appropriated Relained Eamnings
Inkerest
Debt principal
Septic Health Loans
Principal repayments Septic Health Loans
Increase (decrease) in:
Inventory
fIncrease) decraase in:
Compensated absences
Capital outlay:
Land
Machinery and equipment
Other
Contingency

Total Budgetary Appropriations
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over Expendifures

Budget

252,683

(2,081,571)
45,538
137,559
15,000

(16,000)

1,617,850
20,270
486,305

6,000

230,961

2,856,738

$ -
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Page 4 of 5
Varlance
Over
Actual {Under)
1,728
8951
2,532
4,022
1,610
744
225
480
__ 53214 ___ 16,460
42,905
136,587
9,350
(10,501)
6,390
(4,613)
1,617,953
15,020
428,459
_ 2,241,560 2,010,599
4,744,096 (1,887,358)
(1,668,126) 1,658,126




Town of Nags Head, North Carolina

Water Fund

. Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Budget

RECONCILEATION OF MOOLFIED ACCRUAL BASIS

TO FULL ACCRUAL BASIS
Revenues over expenditures
Reconciling iterns:
Septic Health Loans
Principal repayments Septic Health Loans
Payment of debt principal
Increase in inventory
Capital outlay
Depreciation and amortization
Increase in accrued vacation and comp pay
Capital donations
Capftal contributions

Change in net assets

6

Actual

Schedule 4
Page 5 of 5

Yariance
Cwer
{Under}

(1,668,126)

9,350
(10,501)
136,587

6,390

2,061,442

(303,036)
(4,613)
626,094

40,310

$ 893,897

|




Town of Nags Head, North Carolina

Storm Water Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual {Non-GAAP} For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

REVENUES
Operating Revenues.
Storm Water Fees
Storm water Grant

Total
Nonaperating Revenues:

Interest earned on investments
Transfer from General Fund

Total

Total Revenues

EXPENCITURES
Postage

Department Supplies
Professional Fees
Contracted Services

Total Expenditures

Budgeatary Appropriations:
Appropriated retained earmings
Deht Issued

Debt Principal
Capital Outlay Equipmeant

Total Budgetary Appropriations
Total Expenditures

Revenues over Expenditures

Budget

175,216

—_—

121
7,000
2,500

249,017

258,638

{57,933)
(86,650)
14,511

86,650
(83,422)

175,216

$ -

RECONCILIATION OF MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS

TO FULL ACCRUAL BASTS

Revenues over (unger) expenditures

Dbt Issued
Capital Outlay
Paymerit of Debt Principal

Change in net assets

77

$ 111,720

29,900

141,620

918

41,765
48,684

130,304

(14)
966
1,580

104,810

107,342

{86,650)
13,764

86,650

13,764

_

121,106

$ 69,198

69,198
(85,650)
B6,650

13,764

$_82962

Variance
Ovear
{Under)

15,088

135
6,034
920

144,207

151,296

(97,186)
54,110

$ 69,158

Schedule 5




Town of Nags Head, North Carolina

Nags Head Leasing

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

REVENUES
Operating Revenues:
Other revenues

Total

Nonaperating Revenues:
Interest Earned on Investments

Total

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Other expanditures

Total Expenditures

Budgetary Appropriations
Appropriated retained earnings

Total Budgetary Appropriations

Total Expendituras

Revenues over Expenditures

Budget

 J

RECONCILIATION OF MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS

TO FULL ACCRUAL BASIS

Revenues aver (under) expenditures

Contributions to Water Fund
Sale of Fixed Assets
Depreciation

(Loss) Before Operating Transfers

T8

2

15

$ 19

Schadule &

Variance
Over

{Under)

$ -

19 -

19

i3




TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA Schedule 7
Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable
June 30, 2007
Uncollected Collaction Uncollected
Balance And Balance

Fiscal Year June 30, 2006 Credits Adjustments June 30, 2007
2006-2007 - ¢ 4,393,067 $ 4,473,032 1,888
2005-2006 1,148 (1,161) 2,242
2004-2005% 2,951 109 2,852
2003-2004 2,996 74 2,922
2002-2003 1,673 B3 1,590
2001-2002 2,178 142 2,038
2000-2001 1,940 44 1,896
199%-2000 2,753 78 2,675
1998-1999 1,698 4 1,694
1997-1998 1,528 424 1,104
1596-1937 1,106 1106 -
4 19,981 $ 4,393,067 % 4,473,935 20,899

Less allowance for uncollectible
ad valorem taxes receivable 10,000
Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable, net 10,899

Recancilement with revenues:

Taxes, ad valorem , General Fund
Amounts written off for tax year 96-97
DMV written off

Amounts written off <$1

Refunds paid on taxes

Less penalties and interest

$ 4,482,387
587

911

1

461

(10,412)
$ 4,473,935
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Schedula 8

Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Analysis of Current Tax Levy
Town - Wide Levy
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Taotal Levy
Property
Excluding
Town - Wide Registered Registered
Property Total Motor Maotor
Valuation Rate Levy Vehicles Vehicles
Criginal levy:
Property taxed at current year's rate $ 2,977,393,836 0.147% § 4,391,660 $ 4,391,560 % -
Penalties - 1,407 1,407 -
Total 2,977,393,836 4,393,067 4,393,067 -
Discoverles:
Current year taxes 57,865,611 87,622 27,246 60,370
Penalties - 229 229 -
Total 57,865,611 87,851 27,475 60,376
Abatements [4,217,465) (5,998} {4,963} (1,035)
Tota! property valuation 4 3,031,041582
Net levy 4,474,920 4,415,579 59,341
Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2007 (1,888) (910) {978)
Current year taxes collected $ 4473032 § 4414669 ¢ 58,363
Current levy collection percentage 99.96% 9998%  98.35%
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Martin Starnes & Associates, CTPAs, PA,

A Professional Association of Cevtified Pubfic Accotntants and Meanagenent Consteltarts

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Complianee and .
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
In Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Beard of Commissioners
Town of Nags Head
Nags Head, North Carclina

We have audited the basic financial statements of the govermmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Town of Nags Head, North
Carolina, as of and for the vear ended June 30, 2007, and have issued our report thereon dated October 8,
2007, We conducted cur audit in accordance with auditing standards gencrally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial andits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planping and performing our audit, we considersd Town of Nags Head’s intemal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Town’s internal control over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Town’s internal control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of
control deficiengies, that adversely affects the entity’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or
report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there
is more than a remote likelihood that a misstaterment of the entity’s financial statements that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal controt.

A matenial weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that 2 matcrial misstatement of the financial statements will oot be
prevented or detected by the entity’s intermal control.

Our consideration of the intemal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the internal
control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses, We did
not identify any deficiencies in intermal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Town of Nags Head's financial statements are
free of material misstaternent, we performed tests of its compliance and other matters with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have 2 direct and

730 13th Avenue Drive SE = ickory, North Caralioa 28602 « Phone 328-327-2727 + Fax H2H-3ZR-2324
13 South Center Streee » Taylorsville, North Caroline 28681 » Fhone 828-0632-00235 « Fax 828-032-9085
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material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance and other matters with those provisions was not an ohjective of our audit and, accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The resulls of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners, members of

management, others within the organization, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through
entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

. ]
PTos Hpnss) £ (oveciotia, P2, P,
Martin Starncs & Associates, CPAs, PLA.
Octaber 8, 2007
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